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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Grasim Premium Fabric Private Limited (Formerly known as Soktas India Private
Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Grasim Premium Fabric Private
Limited (Formerly known as Soktas India Private Limited) (“the Company™), which comprise the
Balance sheet as at 31 March 2019, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid accompanying Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in con formity
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
31 March 2019, its loss, including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity
for the year ended on that date,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the accompanying Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under
those Standards are further described in the *Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
accompanying Ind AS Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company
in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
Ind AS financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the Directors report, but does not include the accompanying Ind AS financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the accompanying Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance/conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the accompanying Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material

misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in

this regard.
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Responsibility of Management for the accompanying Ind AS Finaneial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect 1o the preparation of these accompanying Ind AS financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash
flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of
the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. as amended. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
Jjudgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the accompanying Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the accompanying Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going coneern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to da so,

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the accompanying Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the accompanying Ind AS financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 1o influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these accompanying Ind AS financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the accompanying Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Ewvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a poing
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concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern,

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the accompanying Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures. and whether the accompanying Ind AS financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings. including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

[

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure 17 a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section [43(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit:

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those hooks:

(¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid accompanying Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

(e} On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2019,
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March
2(H9 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f} With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company with reference 1o these accompanying Ind AS financial statements and the operating

effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in *Annexure 2 to this report;

(g) The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2019;

(This space is intentionally lefi blank)
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(h) With respect to the other matters to be ineluded in the Auditor's Report in accordance with

Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i, The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in

its accompanying Ind AS financial statements - Refer Note 36 to the accompanying Ind
AS financial statements;

ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses:

i, There were no amounts which were required to be transferred 1o the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

ForSREC&COLLP
Chartered Accountanis
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i,

vi.

Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements™ of our report on even date

Re: Grasim Premium Fabrie Private Limited

(Formerly Known as Soktas India Private Limited)

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details

(b)

(e)

and situation of fixed assets,

Fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the vear and no material
discrepancies were identified on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the title deeds of
immovable properties included in Property, plant and equipment are held in the name of the
Company. Refer note 17 of the financial statements for details of charge created on immovable
properties for loans taken by the Company.

The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion, the
frequency of verification is reasonable, No material discrepancies were noticed on such physical
verification. Inventories lying with third parties have been confirmed by them as at 31 March, 2019
and no material discrepancies were noticed in respect of such confirmations,

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans,
secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered
in the register maintained under section 189 of the Act. Accordingly. the provisions of clause 3(iii)
(a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no loans,
investments, guarantees, and securities granted in respect of which provisions of section 185 and
186 of the Act are applicable and hence not commented upon,

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and
the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules
made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the
Act, related to the manufacture of fabrics, and are of the opinion that prima facie, the specified
accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed
examination of the same.

vii. (a) Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-

tax, service lax, customs duty, excise duty, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and other
statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate autharities.
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(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in

(c)

viil,

X1,

xil.

xiii.

respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, service tax, sales-tax, customs duty, excise
duty, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and other statutory dues were outstanding, at the
year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became pavable.

According to the information and explanations given to us. there are no dues of income tax, service
tax, sales-tax, customs duty, excise duty, goods and service tax and cess which have not been
deposited on account of any dispute. The dues outstanding of value added tax on account of any
dispute are as follows:

Name of the MNature of dues Amount (Rs.) Period to which| Fornm where
statute the amount dispute is
- ____relate pending
Maharashtra | Disallowance of | Nil FY 2012-13 to | Joint
Value Added input tax eredit | (Refund of Rs. | FY 15-16 Commissioner
Tax Act, 2002 | under the MVAT | 2.214,750/- is of Sales Tax
Act, 2002 recoverable  from (Appeals)
department)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to a financial institution, bank or
government, The Company does not have any dues payable towards debenture holders.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer/further pubic offer/term loans or
any other debt instrument in the current year. Accordingly, reporting under clause (ix) is not
applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon,

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of
the financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by the
management, we report that no fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company by the
aofficers and employees of the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.,

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the provisions of Section
197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Company and hence reporting under
clause 3(xi) are not applicable and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of
the order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the
related parties are in compliance with Section 188 of Act where applicable and the details have
been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting
standards. The provisions of Section 177 are not applicable to the Company and accordingly
reporting under clause 3(xiii) insofar as it relates to Section 177 of the Act is not applicable to the
Company and hence not commented upon.
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Xiv.

XV,

xVi,

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review and hence, reporting
requirements under clause 3(xiv) are not applicable to the Company and hence, not commented
upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred to
in Section 192 of Aet,

According Lo the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of Section 45-1A of the
Reserve Bank of India Act. 1934 are not applicable to the Company,

For SREC & COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 324982E/E300003
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Annexure 2 referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under the heading “Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements” of our report on even date

Report on the Internal Finaneial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Grasim India Private Limited
(Formerly known as Soktas India Private Limited) (“the Company™) as of 31 March 2019 in conjunction
with our audit of the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on
that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these accompanying Ind AS financial statements based on our audit, We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal [inancial controls over financial reporting with reference o these
accompanying Ind AS financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures 1o obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these accompanying Ind AS financial
statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial contrels over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to these accompanying Ind AS financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating efTectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our audit opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
accompanying Ind AS financial statements.

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with Reference to these
accompanying Ind AS Financial Statements

A Company's internal linancial control over financial reporting with reference Lo these accompanying
Ind AS financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control over
financial reporting with reference 1o these accompanying Ind AS financial statements includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain 1o the maintenance of records that, in reasonable delail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets ol the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management
and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a
material effect on the accompanying Ind AS financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with Reference to
these accompanying Ind AS Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference
to these accompanying Ind AS financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to emor or fraud may oceur and not be
detected. Also. projections of any evaluation of the interal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to these accompanying Ind AS financial statements to future periods are subjeet to the
risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these accompanying Ind
AS flinancial staements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Cpinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these accompanying Ind AS financial statements and such internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these accompanying Ind AS financial
slatements were operating effectively as at 31 March 2019, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

ForSRBC & COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003
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Gritsim Premium Fabric Private Limited

{Formaerly known s Sokins India Private Limited)
Enfance sheet as af 31 March 2019

All pmuunts ore Rupees in lves unless stated stherwise

FPariculars Nodis 31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2007
Assels
MNot-current nssels
Froperty, plant and equipment 13 774114 523004 1L03L56
Capitad work-in-progreas 3. 16.09 3 2,
Intangible assets 32 £70.53 1.027.57 2447
Delered 1ax assets (net) 4 - - 548.73
Financial assets
(ther financial assets 5 41160 612,54 659.57
Oiher non-curren: assets B 64.58 100 6,42
Income tax asset (nat) 7 &1.03 10143 74.41
5,203.57 11,079,58 12,135.26
Current assets
Inventories B 21,598.33 2,8946.64 257166
Financial assets
Trade recuivabiles L] 2473.52 [531.53 2,358.80
' Cash and cash equivalents 10 4.0% 433 636
Oilser bank balances 11 4306 62,39 4,52
Other current financial assets Iz 103,13 301 .46 3258
[Jeher currest assety 13 53113 0638 277.07
,056.30 55073 5.256.09
TOTAL 15,260.27 16,882.71 _17,392.35
Equity and Habilities
Equity
Equity share capiral 14 11,309.06 11,304 06 11,309.0%
Chher equity 15 {4.330.42) (388799 14,444,693
6,078.64 TAZLIT 564,37
Non-current Fabilitivs
Crovemment grants - Deferred povernment sulbsidy 14 41.44 77.03 11594
Financial Labilitics
Bormwings 17 575.02 1659.50 3,055.10
Oither Mnancial linkilities 18 115.44 122.86 24861
Provisions 19 418,26 353.91 31061
! 1, 16016 2214.20 373024
Curreni liahilitkes
Financial linbilities
Bomuwings 1] 2318104 1,650,458 41288
Trade payahles 11
Total outstznding dues of micro enterprises and small emerprises 55.65 - %
Tatal putstanding dues of ereditors other than sicro 34313 3.644.29 431693
Otleer currem financial Kabilities 2 8472 1.479.58 1,395,532
Other current liabilines n 102.65 98,77 16158
Provisions 24 389,10 33632 301.72
712147 T.247.44 6,788.62
TOTAL 15,260.27 16,82.71 17.392.25
Summary of significan scoounting policies 21

The secompunying noles are an integral pact of these financial statements

As per cur repart of even due
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Grisim Premium Fabric Pelvite Limited

(Formerly known es Soltas India Private Limited)

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2019
All mnounis are Rupees in lscs unkess stated atherwise

Particolars Mntes 31 March 2019 M March 2018
Income
Revenus from confracts with costomers 25 14,483,000 18,520.47
Dither income 26 9531 29251
Total Income 16,578.31 1881338
Exponses:
Cost of raw matenzl and componems consumed 27 6,861.70 786431
Purchase of traded goods 28 - 356,24
Change in inventories of finished goods and wark-in- P 146,50 (339.85)
Exclss daty expenses - 471
Employee benefits CXpase I 318447 3,096.03
Depreciation and amenization BRI i 195392 1,805.45
Finanee costs 32 Td4.24 561.56
Other expenses X ] 4.017.66 4,720,758
Tuial Expenses 17,0048 18,099,34
(Loss) f profit before tax (430.18) T14.04
Tux expense: 4
Current Tax
Mininmm aliemative tax (MAT) pavable - 167.50
MAT credit entitlement - {167.50)
Provision for MAT credit - 72623
Teferred Tax 341 {1517
Total tax expense 341 Y106
(Lass) / profit after tax {433.50) 50698
Other comprehensive income (00D
Memy nol w0 be reclassifed 1o profit or loss in sabaequent
Re-measurement (loss) / pain on defined henafit plans {12.25) i
Tnwcoine Lax effect 141 (19,17
Met other comprehensive income not to be reclassified 0 (B.84) 49,72
profit or loss in subsequent period
Total comprehensive bsome for the year (441.43) 556,70
Earmnings per equity share : 34 (0.38) .45
{nominal valve per share Bs. 10]
Basic and dilated
Summasy of significant secounting policics 2l

The sccompanying notes are an infegral part of these financial statements
As per our repor of even dule

FurSRBC & COLLP
Chartered Ac Luniy
1CAT Firm Registyation Number : SEHEJEJE.?MI:IDE

)
|
1
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Pune P Mumibsai

For and on behalf of the board of direciors
Grasim Premiom Fabrie Private Limited
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Grasim Premium Fabrie Private Lindted

(Formerly known as Sokins India Private Limited)
Cash fMow statement for the veor ended 31 March 2010
All amosnts are Rupees In Incs unless stated otherwise

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Crsh Row from aperaling activities
{Loss} f profit before tax (430,183 Tha 04
Adjustment o reconetle (loss) / profit before tax to ner cash Dows
Deprecintion and amortization expense 1,953.92 [ B05.66
(Profit) on sale of fixed asseis (19.07) {oozy
Unrealized foneign exchange Joss 15.10 184
Provdsion for doubtfial debas 8.30 -
Amorization of TUFS subsidy (3640 (38.01}
Interest income [21.3% (2530
Finance costs 721.89 55322
Operating profit before working capital changes 219037 3011.34
Movements in working capiial :

Trade recefvables (A6 1) 531.87

Inventories (169 {318.98)

Financial and other assats 33132 {610.43)

Trade puyabiles (158.0%) (GTLET)

Oiher currear [abilites (.54 (309.47)

Current and non current provisions 114.88 137.79
Cigh genergted fram operations 1,634,568 177545
Thirect taxes refund/paid (net) 10,50 {195.02)
Met cash from operating activities (A} 1,845,585 1,580.43
Cash Mlow wsed in investment activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible ssot, Including capital sdvances {338.63) (1.21038)
Investments in bank deposits (having eriginal materity of more (37.19) (100,74)
than three months)
Redempiion/ matrity of bank deposits (having nriginal mpgurity of 8991 G010
moge than three months)
Froceeds from sale £ deductions of property, plunt and equipment 1875 32830
Interest neceived 45,43 24.58
Net eash Mow used In Investment activities (B) {221.73) [B97.05)
Cach flow psed in Onanclng activities
Repayment of non current borrowings {75519 {1,408.41)
Proceeds from long f2rm borrowings
Proceeds from / repayment of current borrowings (net) 62756 1,277.62
Interest paid (456,70 (553.77)
Net eash Mow {used in) Moancing activities () i1,624.33) (684,52}
Met (decrease) f Increage in cish and cash equivalents {A+B+C) {0.4R) (2.04)
Effect of exchange differences on cash and cash equivalonts heid in foreipn 18 i
Cash and cash equivalenss ot the beginning of the period 433 6,36
Cazh and cash enquivalents ol the end of the peried 4.03 4,33
Compenents of cash and cash equivalents
Cesh on hand {82 1.07
Balosices with banks
= Current accounts 321 3.26
Total cash and eash equivalents (note 10) 4.03 433
Summary of significant accounting policies 11
The pecompanying notes are on integral part of e liancinl statements
Az per our report of even date
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Gragim Premium Fabric Private Limited
(Formerly kmown ns Sobies India Private Limited)

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2019

All amounts are Repees in lncs unless stated othorwise

A} Equity share capital

Particulars Amount
Asur § Apri) 2017 11300.06
Changes in equity share capital -
As al 3] March 2018 11.309.06
Changes in equity share capital -
As ot 31 March 2019 11, 309.06
E) Other equily
Pariicnlars Retoined earnings
Asat 1 April 2017 14,444 69)
Add: Profil for the year 50695
Aubd: Dter comprehensive Income 4872
Total comnprebensive income Tor the year 55610
As it 31 March 2018 {3,B87.99)
Add: {loss) for the year 1433.54)
Add: Cibier comprehensive income {8.54)
Tolal comprebiensive income for the year [#42.43)
As at 31 March 2019 4,330.47)
The accompanying notes are an integral past of these fnancial sldments
As per our report of even date
|
FarSRBC & COLLP For and on behalfl of the board of directors of |
Grasim Premiom Fobrie Private Limited -
o
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Grasim Premium Fabric Private Limited

(Formerly known as Sokias India Private Limited)

Muotes to financial slatements for the vear ended 31 March 2019
All amounts are in Rupees unfess stated otherwise

21

2.2

Corporate Information

Grasim Premium Fabric Private Limited {formerly known as Soktas India Privite Limited) {"ihe Company®) is a pelvate lmited Company domiciled
in Indin. The Company is engaged in manufacture and sale of grey and dyed shirting fabrics. The Company has started the commercial production
from weaving section and fabric processing unit from | January 2009 snd from 12 May 2009 respectively. The CIN of the Company is
U24233PN200TPTC1 33637, The Equity Share Cupital is held by Soksas Tekstil Sansyl Ve Theret A5, upio 2% March 2019, Sokias Takstil Sonayi
Ve Tieret A5, his sold the shares of the Company to Grasim Industries Limied on 29 March 2009,

Pursuant to a reselution passed st the exteaordinary gencral meating of the Company held on 9 April 2009 and recelpt of the fresh cerificate of
Ineorporation dated 3 May 2009 from the reglstrar of companies, the name of (he Company has been changed from “Soktas India Private Limited”
to“Girasim Premiom Fabric Private Limited",

The financtal statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 wese uuthorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company af their meeting held
on 12 Augusi 2019,

Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Preparation:
These finoncial statements are prepared and presented in accordance with the Indian Aecounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies
{Indian Accounting Slandards) Rules, 2015, as amended from time to time as notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, the relevant
provisions of the Companies Act, 2003 (“the Act™).
For all the pariods up to and including the vear ended 31 March 2018 the Company prepared its financial stalements in acoordance with accounting
stundards netified under the section 133 of the Act rend together with paragraph 7 of the Compantes (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indion GAAP). These
financial statements are the first, the Company has preparcd bn secondance with Tnd A%, Refer 1o note no 46 o information on first timie adoption of
Ind AS,
Based on the balunce sheet position as ot 31 March 2019, the financinl statements are prepared on golng concem basis, considering the scheme of
amalgrmation of the Company with Grasim Industries Limited (Holding Company) (refer nate 49),
The financial statemenits have been prepared and presented a1 historical cost, excapt for the foflowing assets and liabilities;
* financial assets and finnacial liabilities (including derivative instramenss) which have been measured at fuls value,
* defined benefit plans-Plan assets are measured at fakr value,
The financial statements are presented in Indlan Rupeas, which is the functional currency of the Company and the currancy of the primary economic
environment in which the Company operates, and all values are rounded to the nearest lacs, except my otherwise indicated,
Summary of Significant Accounting Policles
Current versus non-current classilication
The Company presents assets and labilities in the balance shest based on current! non-current classification. An msset is treated as current shen it [s;
* Expeted to be realised or intended 10 be seld or consumed in normal operating ey
* Held primarily for the purgose of trading
* Expecied to bo sealised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
* Cnsh or cosh equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used 1o seitle 3 liakiligy for s least twelve months after the reponting period
All other assets wre classified as nop-current.
A liabiliny is curment when:
* It is expected o be setiled in nomal operating cycle
* [bis Teeld primaily for the purpose of trading
* It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reponting period, or
* There is no unconditlonal right to defer the settlement of the liahility for o least twelve manths aiiér thi reporting pestod
‘The Company clossifies all ather Kabilities a5 non-curment,
Dieferred tax assets and Liabilities are classifiad as non-current assets and labilifes,
The operating cycle is the time between the sequisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cosh and cosh equivalents. The Company hos
identified twelve months as its operting cycle.
Forelgn Currencies

The Company's financizl statements are presented In Indion rupees, which is also the functional currency of the Compony.

Transactions in foreign currencies are accounted at the functional currency spot rates prevailing on the date of transactions, Monetary forcign
currency financial assets and liabilitles are translated st funcrional curency spod rates of exchange at the reporting date. The resulting exchange
differences are appropriately recognised in the Statement of profit and loss,

Non-memetary iees that are measured in terms of historical costs in a forcign currency are translated using the exchanpe iy at the dates of the
initinl transnetions, Mos - monetary items measored at Gair value in g foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when tha
fair value is determined. The gain or loss arfsing on ransiation of non-monetary items measured at fair vaue is trestad in line with the recognition of
the: gain or loss on the ehange in the fair value of the item.

Fair value measurements
The Company measures Anonciol instruments st fair value on initial recognition.
Fadr value 3 the price that would be raceived 1o sell an asset or paid 4o transfer a liability in an erderly transaetion between market paricipants at the
measurement date, The fair valoe measurement is based on the presuniplion that the trangaction to sell the asser ar transfer the Tiakality takes place
either:

* In the principal market for the asset or labiline or =

® In the aheence of 4 principal market, in the mest advantageous marked for the asset o Habiliy




Grasim Fremium Fabric Private Limited

{Formerly known as Sokias India Private Limited)

Notes to fingocinl statements for the vear ended 31 March 2019
All smounts are in Rupees unless stated otherwise

i

The principal or the most advantagedus market must be accessible by the Company. The falr value of an asset or o lability s meosured using the
assumptions that markel participants would wse when pricing the assel or lability, assuming (hat marker participants &c1 in (heir cconomic best
interest.

A falr value messurement of 2 non-financial assst wakes into account & markel participants ability 1o generate economic benefits by using the pssel in
its highest and best use or by selling it Lo another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use,

The Company wses vabsusion techniques (hat are appropriaic in the circumstances and for which sufficient data pre svaflable 10 messure Tais i,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the e of unobrervable inputs

All assers mawd linbilities for which faie value is measured or disclosed in the fnancial staements are categorized within the foir vahe hieracdiy, This
is described, as follows, based on the Jowest level input that is significant 1o the fair value measursment as o whole:

Level 1 — CQuoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or labilities

Level 2 — Vatuation techiniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair valoe messusement is directly or indirectly chservable
Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level inpot that is significant 1o the fair value measurement is unohservable,

For the purpase of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined elasses of assets and Habilities on the basix of the nature, characteristios and
risks of the asse: or Hability and the level of the falr value hierarchy s explained sbove, This note semmarises accounting polticy for fair valee,
Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes:

Diselosures for valuation methods, significa estimates and assumptions (refer note 38)

Fimancial instrumens (including those carried at amortiséd cost) {refer note 5, 9, 10, 11, 12, 17, 18, 20, 21 and 23

For gesets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on o recurring basis, (he Company idetermines whether transfess hive
ecurred hetween bevels in the hicrsey by re-assessing categorisation (based oo the lowest lovel input that is significant m the fair value
measurement a5 a whaole) at the end of each reporting period.

Revenue from contract with customers:

Revemue frinn contracts with cusiomers is recognised when conrol of the gonds or serviees are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the Company expects to be entliled in exchange for those goods or services, excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf
of the povernment e.g, gonds and serviee i (G5T), The Compiny has geneqully concluded thut it is the principal in its revenue arangements,

The disclosures of significant sceounting judgements, estimates and assumptions relating to revenue from contracts with customers are provided in
Mote 38,

Sale of gonds

Revesise from sale of goods is recognised ot the point in time when eontrol of the asset is transferred (o the customer, on the basls of fenms of
contract with the customer. The nomaal credit term &3 30 1o 90 days upon delivery, In determining the transaction price for the sale of goods, the
Company considers the effects of varible comyldersion.

Volume rebates

The Company provides relrospective volume rebates 1o certain costomers once the guantity of products purchased by them during ihe period
exceeds o threshold specified in the contract, Rebates are offset agalnst amounts payable by the eogtomer and wre reduced from revene, To estimale
the variable consideration for the expected future rebates, the Company applies the most likely amount method for contracts with o single-volume
threshold and the expected value method for contrasts with more than one volume threshold. The selected method that best predicts the amount of
variable considerntion s primarily driven by the number of volume threshelds contained in the contract,

Sale of services « Job work charpes

Revenue from service contracts is recognised over time i.e. as and when services are renderod, The Company coltects revenus based on the units
delivered, The Company considers that sutput methed is an appropriate measure of the progress towards complete satisfaction of these performance
obligations wnder Ind AS 115,

Contruct assets

A contract assel s the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transfemed 1o the customer, 17 the Company performs by teansferring
ool or services 1o 8 customer before the customer pays the consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the eanmed
considerntion that is conditiona,

Contract Habilities

A goastract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to & customer for which the Company hias received considerstion {of on amount of
consideration is due when bifling hus been done) from the customer. If a customer pays congideration before the Company translers goods or
services Lo the customer, a contract lobility is recognised when the payment is made or the paymend is due (whichever is earlier). Conteoct Habilitics
are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract,

Trade receivaliles
A receivable represents the Companies rght to an omount of considerntion thot is unconditional (e, ooly the passage of time is reguired before
payment of the consideration is due).

(Thix space is feft blank intentionally)




Grasim Premium Fabrie Private Limbted

(Formerly known as Soktas India Privale Limited)

Motes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
Al amounis are in Rupees unless stated otherwise

Interest income

Interest income is recognised using effective interest rate method CEIR'). EIR is the rae that exacily discoants the estimated fulure eash paymenes or
receipts over the expected [ife of the financial instrument of & sharter perod, where appropriate; to the gross amount of the financial asset or to the
emortised cost of a fnancial liohility, When caleulnting ETR, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the confractunl
terms of the financial instrument but doesn't consider the expected credit losses. Interest incorme i included in Other Income in the Statement of
prodit and loss,

e Government gronts and subsidics:
Governiment Grants are recognised when there is a rensonable assurance has the same will be seceived and 5l attached conditions will be complied
with. When the grant relates o an expense item, i s recognised in the Statement of prefit and loss by way of a deduction o the related expense on
systemutic basis over the pericds (thit the related costs, for which it is intended 1o compensate, are expensed. When the prant relates to an asset, it is
recognised as income on a systematic basis over the expected sseful life of the relsted assel,
When the Company receives grams of nen-monetary assets, the asset and the grant are recorded at transaction amounts and released 1o profit or loss
over the expected uselol lifie in o pattem of consumption of the Benefil of i underlying asser,

f.  Provision for Current and Deferred Tax:
Current Income Tax:
Current income tax assets and fiabilities are measured ar the amount expacted to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates
and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted, at the reparting date.
Curreed income vax relating to ltems reeognised outside profit or loss is recognised outslde profit or loss (gither in ciher comprehensive income o in
equity), Curment tix ilems are recogrised In correlation o the underlying transaction either in OCT or directly in equity. Management perodically
evaluates positions taken it the tax refurns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulitions are subject to interpretation and establishey
provisions where sppropriate.

Deferred Tax:

Deferred tax is provided using the ligbility method on temporary differences between the tax bases of asseis and linhilities, and their carying
amoimts for financial reporting purpeses at the reporting date,

Deeferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable tempocary differences.

Dieferred 1nx assete pre recognised for all deduwetible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused 1ax credits wd any unused tax Jasses,
Dreferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it §s probahle that taxahle profit will be wvailable, against which the deductibla temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax bosses can be utilised,

The currying amount of deferred tu gasets is reviewed ot each reporring date und reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxalde profie will be avallable o iliow all or part of the deferred ax asset to e wilised, Unrecognlsed deferred too assetd ane neassessed al each
reponting date, and ane recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow (he deferred iy assel 1o be
recoversd,

Dreferred tax assets and Habilities are measured &t the tax rates thol are expecied 1o apply in the yenr when the asset is reallsed or the liskility is
settled, bated on tax rates (and tax liws), thet have been enacted or substantively eracted a1 the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating 1o items recognised outside profit o loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income of in
equity), Drefermed tax itema are recognised in comelation 1o the underiying transaction cither in OC1 or directly in equity, Deferred tax asacts and
daferred tax linbilities are offset, if o legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax lighilities,

Minimum Alternate Tox (MAT):

MAT is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there |s convineing evidence that the Company will pay normal Income Tax during the
speeified period, In the year in which the MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognised, it 1% credited to the Statament of profit and Joss and is
considered as {(MAT Credit Entitlement), The Company reviews the same al each Balance Shest dute and writes down the currying amount of MAT
Credit Entitlement (o the extent there §s no longer convincing evidence o the offect that the Company will pay nermul Income Tax during the
specified period. Minimum Aliemate Tax (MAT) Credit are in the form of upused tax eredits that are earried forwusd by the Company for a
apecified period of time, hence, it is presented with Deferred Tax Asset,

g Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE):
On trensition 1o Ind AS, the Company has élected o continye with the carrying valee of all s property, plan and equipment nscognised as at |
April 2017, measured as per the previous GAAP and wse that carrying value as the deemed cost of the property, plant and equlpment.
Property, plant and equipment are stated sl sequisition or constrsction cost less accumulited deprecintion and impairment loss, Cost comprises the
purchaze priee and any artributable cost of hringing the asset to its location and working condition for its intended use, including refevant bormowing
casts and any expected costs of decommissioning. Any trace diseounts and rehates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Such cost ineludes
the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required 1o be replaced at intarvals, the
Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewtse, when o major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in
the carrying amound of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recogtition criteria are sotisfied. All cther repair and muintenance costs ae
recognised in Statement of profit wnd loss as incwred,
Irems such 08 spare parts, standby equipment and servicing equipment are recognised as FPE when it is held for use in the production o supply of
goods or services, or for administrative porpose, wnd are expected 1o be gsed for more than one yenr, Otherwise, such ilems are classified as
invantory.

{This space is left blank intentionaily) ==




Grasim Premium Fabric Private Limited
(Formerly known as Soktas Indin Private Limited)

Motes to financial siatements for the yeor ended 31 March 2019

All amounts are in Rupees unless stated otherwise

Giaing or Josses arising from derecopnilion of property, plaot and equipments are measured as the difference between (e net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the Statement of profit and loss when the asset s derecognized.

Capital work-in-progress includes cost of propeny, plant and equipment under installationfunder developmes & & the reporting date,

Depreciazion is the systemalic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asser over its useful ife and is provided on a straight-line basis over the
wseful lives ag prescribed in Schedule 0 of the Companies Act, 2013, The identified components are deprecialed separately over their useful lives:
the remaining components are depreciated over the kife of the principal asser,

The Company has not technically assessed the useful life of propeny, plant and equipments and has considered the lifs specified in Schedule IT of
the Companies Act, 20113 as the useful life of property, plant and equipments for the purpose of computing depregintion,

The following mble sunmarises the aseful lves wied by the Company to provide depreciation on propesty, plant and equipmenis:

Type of Asset Schedule 11 useful life (in vears)
Factory buildings 0
Oiher buildings &0
Roads 11
Plunt und equipments (refer node iv) TS50 15
Fumiture and fixtures 10
Vihicles g
Office eguipment [
Compauters Itoh

Leaseliold land is amortized on a simdght line busis over the perlod of leose i.o. 95 years.
Depreciation on additions is peovided on o pro-rata basis from the date of installation or acquisition, Deprectation on deductions! disposals is
providad on & pro-ata basis upto e dote of deduction/dsposal,

Intangible Assets aequired separately and Amertisation:

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continus with the canrying value of all jts intangible pssets recognised as al | Aprl 2007
mensured & per the previous GAAP and wse that carrying value os the desmed cost of the property, plast and equipment.

Intangible assets, acquired separately, are measured on Inftial recognition at cost, Following initial recognition. intangible assets are camvied af cost
bess anvy nocumulated amortisaion and accurmilated impaiement losses, if any.

Intangible assels with finite lives are amonised over the useful econombe life ond assessed for impatrment whenever there |5 an indication thae the
Intangible asset moy be impaired, The amonisation period and the amaortisation method for an intangdble asset with o finile wselul Blis am reviewed
at Jeast ot the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumgtion of fsture economic henefits
emhadied in the asset uré conzidered to modify the amonisation period or methed, as appropriote, and are treared os changes in aceounting
estimntes. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finkte lives is recognised in the Statcment of profit and loss wnless such expendiure
forme part of careying value of another asset. Intangible assets are amortised on a stralght-line basis over their simated uselul lives,

Giains of Iosses arising from derecognition of an intangible asser are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
ameant of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of profic and loss when the wsset is derecogidaed,

The summary of amortization policy applisd 1o the Company's intangible nssets is a5 below:

Type of Asset Useful life (in years) Rate (SLM)
Soltware fi years 16.67%
Technical knowhow 5 years 20,00
Traide mark Rovalty 5 years 20,00%
Borrowing Costs:

Borrowing cost inchsdes interest expense, ancillary costs incurred in connection with borrowing of funds and exchange difference, arising from
foreign currency borrowings, 1o the extent they are régurded as an adjostmeant to the interest cost,

Borrowing costa that are attributable 1w the scquisition or construction or production of o qualifying asset, are eapitalised as pare of the cost of such
asset Gl such fime the asset is ready for its intended use, A qualifving asset is an asset thar neecssarily takes @ substuntial peried of tme o get ready
for its intended use, All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred,

Leasest

A et B8 classified at the inception date 3 a finance lease or an operiting lease. A lease that translers substamtially all the risk and rewards
incidental to ownership to the Company is classified as a finance lease,

The determination of whether an arangement is, or containg, a lease & based on the substance of the arrangement o ke inceplion date. The
arrangement is assessed for whether fulfifment of the amangement |s dependent on the use of a sperific asset or assats of the ATANEEMENE CORVEYS &
right to e the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an orrngement, Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewartds of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases.

Company as & lessee: Lease charges under operating leases are recognised as an expense on straight-line basis over the lease term unless the
puyments are struetured (o incrense in line with general inflation (o eompensate for lessors expected inflationary cost increads,

{This space iy Teft Blank intentionaliy)
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Notes to Mnancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
All amounts are in Rupees unless stated otherwise

k. Inventories:
Baw materizly, traded goods, steres and spares are valued at lowes of cost and net realizable value, However, matertals and other ivems held for use
in the production of inventories are net written down below cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are expecied to be sold
ar or above cost. Cost of mw materials and stores and spares is determined on & weighted average basis, Stores and spares which do not meet the
definition of propenty, plant and equipment are accounted as inventores,
Work-in-progress, finished goods and other items of stores, spares, packing material and waste stock are valued a1 lower of cost and net realizahle
value, Cost [ncludes direct materils and labour and a proponion of manulacturing overhzads based on normal operating capacity. Cost s
determined on o wedghted average basis.
Met realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated cosw
necessary o make the sale.

L Impairment of Non-Financinl Assets:
At the end of each reponting period, the Company reviews the carying amounis of non-finoncial assets to determine whether there is any indication
thut those assets have suffered an impadrment loss. If any indication exlsts, or when annual impoirment teating for an asset I required, the Company
estimates the asset’s recoverable amoumt, An asset’s necovershle amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's {CGUY the higher of
fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asser, unless the asset does not genernte
cush inflows that are lurgely independent of those from other assets or group'’s of assess.
In pasessing the value in e, the estimated future cash fows are discounted 1o their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects cument
mariel assessiments of the tme value of money and the rsks specific to the psser, for which the eatimntes of fulure cash fows have not been
adjusted,
If the recoveraile amoint of an Asset (or cash-generating unit) s estimated 1 be bess than its carrying amoust, the earrying ameunt of the asset (or
cash-generating unit} is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impainment loss is recognised immedistely n the Statensent of profit and lnss, unless
the relevant asset 18 carvied at a revabeed nmouns, in which case the impadrvent loss is treated 05 8 revaluation decrease,
Afier impairment, deprecintion is provided on the revised carrying amownt of the assel over its remaining useful Iife,
When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the camying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unil) s increased 1o the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, bt so that the increased comrying amount docs nod exceed the corrying ameunt that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asses (of cash-generaling unit) in prior years. A reversal of ua impadrment boss is recognised immediarely in
the Stacement of profit and foss, unless the relevant asset i carried at a revalued amount, in which case the teversal of the impairment loss is treated
a5 & revalumion increase,

m. Provislons and Cosntingent Liabilities:
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as n result of & past event, it is probable that (e
Company will be required 1o sellle the ohligation, and & relipble estimate can be made of the amouni of the obligation.,
A present obligation that arises from past events, wiiere it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or o relishls
estimate of the amount canmed be made, Is disclosed a5 a contingent lability, Contingent linbilities ore alse disclosed when there s a possibla
obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the oceurtencs or non-oocurmence of one or more uncsrain
future events nol wholly within the control of the Company,
Clatms agoinst the Company, whers the possibility of any outllow of resounces in settlement i remode, are oot disclosed as contingent liabilitles.
Conlingent assets are nod recognised In the financial statements since this may resull in the recognition of income that may never be realised,
However, when the realisation of income i virually cerain, then the related asset 3 not a contingent ssset and is recognised.

n. Retirement and other employee benefils:
Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme, The Company has na obligation, other than the contribution
payable i the provident fund, The Company recognizes contribution payable (o the provident fund scheme as an expendiure, when an cmployee
renders the related service, If the contrbution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheer dua exceeds the contribution
already paid, the deficil payable 1o the scheme is recognized as a labiliy after deducting the contribution already paid. 17 the contribution already
peid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the halance sheel date, then excess is recognized s an nsset 1o the extent that the pre
payment will lead to, for example, o reduction in future payment or a cash refund.
The Company opetates a delined benefit plan for its employees, viz., graity. The costs of providing benefits under this plan is determined on the
basis of pewarial valusion st ench yéar end. Actowrial valusion has been caried out wsing the projected unir credit method. Remeasurements,
compristng of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net inerest on the net defined benefit liahility,
are recognised immediately in the balanes sheet with o comesponding debit o credis 1o retwined eamings through OCT in the period in which they
oecur. Remeasurements are ot reclissified 1o profit or loss in subsequent periods.
Accumulaed leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is trented as short-term employee benafit, The Company mensuses
the expected cost of such absences as the additiona] amount that it expects (o pay a8 & result of the wosed entitlement thal has secomulated 2t the
reparting date,
The Company trears aceumulated leave expecled to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-teem employee benelit for measuremient
purpeses, Such long-lerm compensated absences are provided for based on (he setuarial valustion using the projecied unit credit method at the year
end. Actuarial gainsfInsses are immedistely taken 1o the Statement of profit and Toss and are not deferred, The Company presents the leave as a
current lishility in the balance sheel, te e extent it doss not have an unconditional dght o defer its sottlement for 12 monchs after (he reporting
date. Where the Company has the unconditional legal and contractunl right o defier the settlement for a period beyond 12 months, the same is
presented os a long tenm provision.

{This space is left Wank intentivnally)
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Grasim Premium Fabric Private Limited

(Formerly known as Soktas India Private Limited)

Motes to Minancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
All smounts are in Rupees unbess stated otherwise

Financial instruments
A fingneiad instroment is any contrace that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and & financial liability or equity instrument of abother enlity.

Financial asseis

All financial assels are recognized initially ar fair value plus, dn the case of financial assets not recorded at Fair valoe through profit or loss,
transaction costs thot are attdinuable to the soguisition of the financial asset, For all subsequent measurements finoncial sssets are classified in
following categories:

Aj Debt instruments

Dbt instruments ot amortised cost A debq instrument is at amortised cost 7 the asset {s hald within 2 business model whose objective is to hold
ansels for collecting contractual cash fows, and contrgctual terms of the assel give rse oo specified dates 1o cash Now Ut are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amoont sutstanding.

This category is most relevant to the Compuny. After inifial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured af amortised cost using the EIR

Amdartised cost is calculated by iaking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees for cost that ans an integral pant of the ETR. EIR
amortisation is included in other income in the Staemest of profit and boss, This category peneratly applies 1o Joans and irade and olher receivabiles,

Debt instruments fair value through DCT (FYOCT: A debt instument bs classilied as FVOCT i the financial asset s held within a business model
whide shjective is achisved by both collecting contractual cosh flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the Anancial asset glve
rise on specified dates to cash Aows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount culstanding. The Company has not
clossified any financial sssets under this cotegory.

Debt instruments at Tnir value throngh profit and loss (FVTPL): Debd instruments not classified as amortised cost or FVOCT are classified as
FVTPL. The Company has not classified any debt under this category,

B Equily instruments

Equity instruments held for wading are clissified a5 FYTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an irmevocable election o
present in OCI the subsequent changes in fair value, The Compaty makes such clection on @ instrument by instrument basis, 17 the Company
decides to classify an equity instrument as FVOCT, then all falr value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends are recagnized in OCL Thene
is no recycling of the amount from CCL to Statement of profit and loss. Howevar, the Company may trunsfes the cumulative gain or loss within
equity.

Devecognition

A financial asset (or wherever applicable, o pant of the financial asset or pan of a group of simila financial assets) is primasily derecognized when
the rights to receive cash flow from the assets have expired or the Company has transfesred its rights to receive cash Aows from the pssel or has
wasumed an obligation (o pay the received cash fiow in full to a thicd party under o pass through arrantgement and either o) the Company hos
transferred subwtantiafly il risks and revards of the gsset or B) has isansferred controd of (he asset.

Impairment of fmancial assets

In accosdance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies sxpected credit loss (ECL) model for mensurement and recogaition of fmpairment loss and
credit risk eaposure on the financial asses that are debt Instriments measured ol amerized coss eg. loans, deposits, trade receivables and bank
balances.

The Company follows simplfied appronch for recognition of impalement loss allowance on trade receivables, The application of simplified
approach does not require the Company fo track changes in credit risk, Rather it recognizes impainnent loss allowance based on lifetima BCL's at
ench reporting dote, dght from bt infind recognition,

For recognition of impairment Ioss on olher financial gssels and sk exposure, the Company determines tiat whethar there has been a significant
increase in the credit risk since initlal recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12 moath ECL is used o provide for impairmest
Losy, However, If credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime BCL is used. If in subsequent period the credil risk reduces since initial recognition,
then the entity reverts o recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12 month ECL,

As o practical expedient, the Company uses a provision marix 1o determing impairment loss allowance on porfolio of its trade receivables, The
muatrix i based on its hsoncally ohserved default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is nekjusted for forward looking estimates.
At every reporling dite, the historical ohserved defaull rates are upduted and changes in the forwand looking estimates are analysed. The Company
has presumed thal defaull doesn't ocour later than when a Gnancial ansct is 90 days past due.

Impairment loss allowance including ECL or reversal recognized during the perod {8 recognized as incoms/ expense in the Stabernent of profit and
loss. This amount is reflected under the head *Other Expenses” in Statement of profin and boss, The impairment loss is présented as an allowance in
the halance sheet as a reduction feom the el camrying amount of the trade recelvable, loan and depasits respectively.

Financial Liabilities

All financial liabilities are initially recognised at fuir value. The Company's financial liobilities include trade and other payables, other financial
tiahilities. loany and borrowings including hank overdmdt and derivative Gnancial instruments,

Subsequent measuremend of financial labilities depends ca their clossifieation us FYTPL or at amortized cost,

All changes in fair value of financial liabilities classified as FYTPL iy recognized in the Statement of profit and loss. Amortised cost CHlBEoTY is
applicable to loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, After initial recognition the financial lobilities are measured o amortised cost using
EIR method. Gaing and losses are recognized in Statement of profit and loss when the labilities arne derecognized as well as through the EIR
amorization process. Amortised cost is ealeulued by taking into secount any discount or premium on acguisition and fees or cost that are infegral
part of EIR, EIR, amostization is included as finance cost in the Statement of profit and loss.

e — {This spece it loft blank intentionally)
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Grasim Premivm Fabric Private Limited

{Formerly known as Soktas India Private Limited)

Notes to financial stalemients for the year ended 3 March 2019
Al amounts are in Rupees unless stated otherwise

Derecognition

A financial liability s derecognized whea the obligation unter the Hahifity is discharped or cancelled or expires, When an existing financial liability
is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the tzrms of an existing liabiliy are subsianiially modified, such an
exchange or modification s rented s the derecognition of the original linbility and the recognition of the new linkility, The difference in the
renpective corrying amounts is recognized in the Statement of profit and lese,

Derivatives

The Company uses derivative Tnancial instruments such as forwand currency contracts Lo hedge itz foreign currency risk. Such dedvative financial
instruments are initinlly recognized at fair valug on the date on which a derivative contract is entered and are subsequently remensared o Fair vahe
Derivatives are caried as financial assets when the fair valoe @5 positive and as Gnancial lisbilities when the fair value is negative, Any gaing or
losses arlsing from changes in the fair valus of derlvatlves ase taken directly to the Statement of profit and loss,

Reclugsification of financial instruments

After initlal recognition, no reclassification is made for [oanciel assets which are equily instraments and financial lnbilities. For financial assets,
which are debd instrments, a reclassification is made only if there ix a change in the business model for maniging those assets. Changes (o the
husiness model are expected to be infraquent. IF the Company reclassifies the financial sssets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the
reclassificition date which is the first day of the immedisely next reporting period following the change in the business model,

HTsviting financial assets and financial liabilities
Finnncial assets and linbilities are offses and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if thers is o currently enforceable legad right 10 offser (he
recopnized amounis and there is an intention to settle on & net basis, o readise the assets and settle the liahilities simultaneously,

p. Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cosh on hand and cash al banks, incliding fixed deposit with original mamsity perod of three months o less
onel shor-term highly liquid investmante with an orginal maturity of three months or less,

0. Harmings Per Share (EPS):
Buasic eamnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable 1o equity shreholders by the weighted-nveraps number of
equity shires outstanding during the perdod, For the purpose of calewlating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the yedr aiributable
tor esqelty shareholders and the weighted-average number of shares omstanding during the period are adjusted for the effoets of all dilitve podentinl
cquity shares.

r.  Scgment reporting
Operating segments are reported in o manncr consistent with the internal reporting previded to the chief operating decision-muker. The chief
opesating decision-makee, who i3 responsible for allocating resources and nssessing performance of the operating segments, hos been identified a3
the Board of Directors that makes srtegic decizions.

(Thix space iy left blank intentionally)
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Grastm Premium Fabric Private Limited

(Formerly known as Soktas India Private Limited)
Notes to financial statements Tor the year ended 31 March 2019
All amounts are Rupees in lacs unless stated otherwise

3.2 Intangible Assets
Computer soltwire Technical Knowhow Trademark Tolal
Cuost
ALl April 2017 24.47 - - 24.47
Additions - 1,080,558 - 108058
Disposals / discarded - - - -
At 31 March 2018 24.47 1,080,585 - 1,105.05
Additions 2,00 4.27 HE50 75.17
Disposals / discarded - - - -
At 31 March 201% 2647 1,084.85 68,90 1,180,22
Amortization
At 1 April 20017 - - - -
Charge lor the year 584 7164 - T7.48
Disposals / discarded - - - .
At 31 March 2018 584 T1.64 - 7748
Chirge for the year 5.96 21725 - bk e d |
Disposals { discarded - - - -
Al 31 March 2019 11.50 2RR.50 - 300,69
MNed Block
|At 31 March 2018 15.63 1,008.94 = 1,027.57
AL AT March 2019 14.67 T85.96 GE.H) 579,53

The Company hos elecied to continua with the camying value of property, plant and equipment o3 recognized in the finnncial statements as per Indian

GAAP and regard those valees ns deemed cost on the date of transition,

(This space is Teft blank intentionally)
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Grasim Premium Fabric Private Limited

(Formerly known as Sokias Indin Private Limited)

Motes to financial statements For the year ended 31 March 2019
Al amounits are Rupees in lacs unless stated otherwise

4. Income tax
#. Deferred tax assels (ned)
Balunee Sheet Statement of profit and loss

M Mareh 2019 31 Murch 2018 L April 2007 3 March 2019 31 Maorch 2018
Gross deferced tax liability
Difference betwesn WDV as per tax and books 328,28 534.68 Ti5.12 {206.440) (180.54)
of accounts
Gross deferred tax lnbility 328.28 534,68 TI5.2 (206400 (180154}

Gross deferred tax asset

Impact of expendifure charged to the Statement 28746 246.09 246,18 41.37 (S0.00%
of profit and loss in the current period bt

allowed For tax purpeses on payvment basis

Unabsorbed depreciation ( brought forward 25.06 269.42 418904 (244,36} (144%.62)
business losses *

Minkmum allemative tix (MAT) credit 126,23 226,23 LT E] - H
entitlement

Proviston for MAT credit emtitlement 8 (226.23) (226.27) - - (226.23)
Digferred Tax on frems in CCT 15.76 1817 - (3,413 19,17
Gross deferred tax assel 328.28 534,68 773.95 {206,400 {416.77)
Deferred tax assels {net) - - 58.73

Total tax expense in Statement of profit and Jozy and OCT - ({226.33)

* As per Ind AS 11 ‘Income Tax', the Company has recorded the cumulitive deferred thx liahility as at 31 Mazch 2009 of Ra. 32828 Lacs {31 March
2018 Rs. 534.68 Lacs; | April 2017 Rs. 71522 Lacs) and recognized the cumulative deferred tax asset on the bosis of prudencs, cnly 1o the extent of
thee cumlative deferred tux lobility as at 31 Masch 2009 and 31 Murch 2018

i Ak el 31 March 2019, the Company has an accumulated MAT eredit entitlement of Rs, 226.23 Lacs (3] March 2018 : Bs. 225,23 Laes) which is
eligibbe for set off ngainst tnx paynble under provision of Income Tax Act, 1961, In shesnce of convincing evidence as al halanee sheet date on inflow
of economic benefit, the same hos aot been recognized ns on asset,

b. Income tax expense in Statement of profit and loss

Purticulars 31 March 201% an ﬂﬂ'_l.!b 2018
Cuarrent tax
Mindrmum altemmate tax (MAT) . 167.50
Deferred tax
MAT credit entitlement - (167.50)
Provizion for MAT eredit . 22623
Deferred tux 3.41 (19,17}
Met income tax expense reported in the Statement of profit and loss 34 207.06
OCI section (3.41) 19.17
Total tax cxpense in Stetement of profit and loss and OCI - 22613
. Reconvilintion of tax cxpenses snd the accounting profit multiplied by Indin's domestic tax rate for M March 2009 and 31 Muarch 2018
Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Accounting (loss} / profit before rax (430.18) 1404
At Indin's statwory income Lax rde 27.82% 2082
Tax at full rate {115.68) 198.65
Adjustments:
Dieferred tax asset not recognised for unabsorbed losses 119.68 =
Carry forward |psses set off ngainst income and tax recognised as per MAT provisions - (31.15)
Provigion made for carlier period MAT Credit - 58.73
Dueferred tax on OCI section 341 (10,17
123.00 B.41
Income tux expenses reported in the Statement of profit and loss 341 20706

{This space ix Teft blank intentionally)




Grasim Premium Fabric Private Limited

(Formerly known as Soktas Indla Private Limited)

Motes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
ANl amounts are Rupecs in lacs unless stated otherwise

5. Other non current financial assets (carried at amoctised cost)

M March 2009 31 March 2016 1 April 2017
TUFS interest subsidy receivable 366,57 566.34 540.28
Security deposits 42.01 40,01 38.9]
Mon-carrent bank balances - Deposits with remaning maturity for more than 12 months 2.96 604 55.06
Interest accrued on fixed deposits .06 015 2342
411.60 612.54 659.57
6, Other non=current assels
3 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
Capitnl advances 6.TR - 126,04
Prapaid expenses 17.74 42,13 T0.08
Balances with sintwiory £ government mutheorities 40,06 64,87 00,30
4,58 1700 286,42
7. Income tax asseis (net)
31 March 2009 31 March 2018 1 Aprll 2017
Advance income-tax {net of provision) 91.03 101.93 7441
91.03 101.93 7441
B, Inventories
31 March 2009 31 March 2008 1 April 2017
Beovar muoreriuls [includes goods in transit] G778 494,68 554.76
Work-in-propress [includes grock Iving with third parties] 1,180.14 1,253.28 1,105.76
Finished goods [including stock in transit] B28.25 90161 700,28
Stores, spares and packing material [incleding goods in transit] 162.23 21151 180,87
Wiste stock and other maevials 3803 35.56 26,00
2.K9R.33 289664 2.577.66
9. Trade receivables {carried al amortised cost)
A1 March 20018 31 March 20018 1 April 2017
Trade receivables 164562 1.541.65 152102
Receivables [rom related party (Reler nowe 39} E27.50 28088 43178
247362 1.831.53 2.358.80
Break up for security details
Secared, considered good - - -
Ungecurad, constdered good 247362 1,831,533 2358.80
Trade receivabie which have significant inceease in credil risk - - -
Trade recaivable - cradit impaired .59 = &
2.482.21 1,831.53 2,358.80
Impairment allowance (allowance for bad nnd doubtful debts)
Unsecured, considered good - -
Trude receivabbe which have significant increase in credin risk - - .
Trade receivahbe - eredit impaired {855 - -
iB.59) " .
247362 1,631.53 2. 35R.80
Trade receivables inciude ¢
3 Maorch 2019 31 March 2008 1 Apeil 2007
D from Soktas Dokuma Sanayi Ticaret A8, in which the Company's non executive director - 289,58 431,78
15 a director
Due from Aditya Birla Fashion and Ketail Limited in which the Company's non executive 82780 H H
director s i director
10, Cash and eash cuivalents (carried o amoriised cost)
31 March 20019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
Balances with hanka
- Current accounts 321 126 6.21
Cash on hand 0.82 107 0.15
. 4403 4.33 LRl
ol =
o GaeLg
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Grasim Premium Fabric Private Limited

(Formerly known as Solitas Indie Private Limited)

Modes to linancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
All amounts are Ropees in lacs unless stated otherwise

11, Giher bank balances {carried at amortised cost)

31 March 2019 31 March 2016 1 April 2017

Deposits with bank (erignal matarity more than 3 months but less than | year)* 43.96 62,39 4.52
43.96 (239 4.52

* Deposits are given aganst bank guarantees and better of credis,

12, Other current linancial assols (earvied al amortised cost)

31 March 2019 31 March 2008 1 April 2007

Advance 1o employees 1.76 10,13 RET]
Government grant { expon incentive i 97,30 235,49 4
TUFS interest subsidy receivable - 270 -

Deposits with bank (erignal maturity more than than | year) 324 34,45 1.84
Interest acerued on fixed deposits (.74 24,69 0,61
Totul 183.13 J0L.46 3158

# CGovernmenl grant [ expor incentive inchudes various schemes of expor incentives (MEIS, duty drawback, etc.) and slacidcity subsidy, GST rebate,
eie, There are no unfulfilled conditions or other contingencies sttached to the said Government grantsfexport incentives.

13 iher Current Asscis

31 March 2019 31 Muarch 2008 1 April 2007

Prepaid expenses 158,33 115,60 11232
Balances with siaiutory § government suthoritics 235,51 230.51 B2.67
Advances to suppliers 100,64 328.23 5724
Government grant { export incentive # 37.75 31.74 24.84

533.23 7ih.38 .

# Government grant £ export incentive includes various schemes of export incentives (MEIS, duly drawback, ete.). There are no unfulfilled conditions or
ather contingencies attached (o the said Government grantsfexpont incentivey.

{(Thix space is Teft Blank intentonaliy)
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Grasim Premiom Fabric Private Limited

(Formerly known as Sokias India Private Limited)

Muotes to financinl statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
All amounts are Rupees in locs unless stated otherwise

14, Equity Share capiial
31 Muarch 2019 31 March 2008 1 April 2017
Authorized
1,180 Lacs {31 Muarch 20018 : 1,180 Lacs | 1 Apal 2017 ; 1,180 Lacs} equity shaves of K. 10- 11,500.00 11,500,000 11,200.00
each
Isswed, subscribed and fully paid up shares
1,130.90 Lacs (31 March 2018 : 1,030,590 Lacs ; 1 April 2007 & [,130:%) Lacs) equity shares 11,309.06 11,209.06 LL 300,06
of Rs, 1(V- gach
Total 11,309.06 11,309.06 1130906
(1) Reconcitintion of the shares sutstanding ol the beginning and at the end of the reporting peried
Equity shares
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
Mo, In Lacg Amouni No. In Lacs Amount No. In Lacs Amount
Balance as al the beginning and end of 113090 11,308.06 1,130,960 11,309.06 1,130.90 11,309.06

{b) Terms/ righis attached to equity shares

The Company has two classes of equity shares having 8 par value of Rs. 10 per share with differential voting rights. Class "A" share holders are
entitled to one vate per shure and Class "B" share holders are entitled 1o one vore for entire closs, For Class "B" sharcholders, dividend and other
voting rights rank parl passu with existing Class "A" equily shires, In the event of liquidation, the equity share holders are eligible 1o reeeive the
remaining assels of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in propertion 1 their shareholding,

{e) Shares held by Holding Company

Type 31 March 20019 31 March 2008 1 April 2007
Soktas Tekstil Sanayi Ve Ticarer A5, Turkey Clazs ‘A - 10,265,000 8.054.52
Mil (31 March 2018 ; 1,026.5% Lacs ; 1 April 2007 © %0545 Lacs) squity
shares of Ra. 10 each
Sokeas Tekstil Sonayi Ve Ticaret A5, Turkey Class T - 1.043.16 1,043,156
Mil (31 March 2018  [04.31 Lacs | | April 2007 : 104.31 Laos) equity
shares of Ba, 10 each

Cirasim Industries Limited, India # Class ‘A 10, 265,90 - -
102659 Lacs (31 dMarch 2008 ¢ Nil ; 1 Aprl 2007 @ Nil) equity shares of

Ra. 10 each

Girasim Industries Limited, Tndia § Clnas B 143,16 - -
104,31 Lacs (31 Masch 2008 @ Nil 5 1 April 2017 = Nil ) equity shares of

Ra 10 each

Total 11,309.06 11,309.06 10,007.68

(d} Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
Name of Sharcholder 31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
No. of shares % of Holding in Mo, of shares % of Holding  MNo. of shares % of Holding

Equity shares of R, 10 each fully paid

Soktes Tekstil Sanayi Ve Ticaret - - 1,120,80 10 00% 1004876 89.20%
AS.®

Internptionad finance corpormion - - - - 121,14 10.71%
Grasim Industries Limited # 1,130.40 1 00005 - - = -
Total 1,130.90 100005 1,135 L0 1,130.51 100.00%

The sharehalding information is based on the legal ownership of shares pnd has been sbstracted from the record of the Company including regiater of
shareholders / membsr, As al 31 March 2009, Grasim Industries Limiled has purehased 1,130.90 Lacs shares from Sotkas Tekstil Sanayi Ve Ticarel
AE, (including shores held by Mr. Fadil Eren as nominze),

* Including one shiare held by Mr. Fudil Enen as nominees sharcholder,

# Including eix shanes held by other individuals in capacity of nominee sharchobkders

{This space is fff Blank intentionally)




Grasim Premium Fabric Private Limited

(Formerly known as Soktas Indin Private Limited)

Motes to financial siatements for the year ended 31 March 2019
All amounis are Rupees in lacs unless staled otherwise

15. Oiher equity

31 March 2018 31 March 2018
Hetained earnings
Opening halance as at April | (3,887.99) [4,444.69)
(Loss) { profit for the year (433.59) 506958
Tiems of other comprahensive ineome recognised in retained eamings
- Remeasusements of post employment benefit ohligations, net of (ax (B.84) 40.72
Closing balance as at March 31 (4,330.42) (3,5R7.99)
Totnl sther equity 14,330.42) (3, 567.9%)
16. Deferred government subsidy

31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
Capital subgidy sapctioned by Ministry of Textiles unider
Technology Upgradation Fumd Scheme (TUFS) on specific fixed
assets
Opening balance as al April | 7703 11504 153,95
Lesy ¢ Transfer to Statement of profit and Joss (36,49} (38.01) (38.01}
Closing balunee s at March 31 41,44 77.53 11594
17. Non-current borrawings

31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
Term louns
Indian rupee lonn from banks {refer note A) I,126.18 2,364.57 1,958.32
Foreign currency Ioans from banks (refer note B) X12.29 772.04 257840
Total 1,398,47 3,134.61 4,534.72
Less : Current maturities of non current borrowings
Indian rupes loan from bunks (refer node A) 63537 1,238.39 81773
Foseign ourrency foans from banks {refer note B) 188,08 23872 63,89
Total B23.45 1477.11 148162
Non Current Portion
Indian nepee loan from banks (refer note A) 490,81 1,126.18 1,140,589
Foreign cummency loans from banks {refer nowe B) 84.21 533,32 1,914.51
Total 575.02 1,659.50 3,055,140
The above amount includes
Secured borrowings (Carrent & Non Cuorrent Portion) 1, 39547 3,136.61 4,536.7T2

A} Indian rupee loans from banks ;

Turms koans fron banks are secured by o pari passu charge on entire Gxed asses (movable and immovable), present and futere,
Term loan taken from Bank of Baroda which was disbursed in foreign currency (USIY in previous years liss converted into an INR loan in Movember
2018, The loan is repayable in fixed monthly iostallmeniz. Other details of the losn are given in the 1able below,

Ej Foreign currency loan from hanks :

Foreign currency loan from banks has been sacared by first hypotheention charge on entire current assets, on & parl-passy basis with member bank, The
Ioan hsas also been secured collaterally by a first pari-passu charge on entire fixed assets (movable and immovable) Ineluding mongage of factory land &

building.

Details of oulstanding borrowings as at 31 March 2019:

Mame of Bunk / party | Perdod of Maturity from | Terms of Currency [Outstanding Amount of|Rates during the period

31 March 2019 repoyment Loans as on 31 March
2019 (respective
currency)
SBI-Corporate Loan I year 5 moanths Monthly LS 394 Spread @4.00%
{Lip to Ang Z020} + 6 M LIBOR
SBI-FTL | yeor 10 months Muonthly INR L1437 | 1 year MCLER * 43.30%
(Lip to January 2021)
ICICT Bank 1 year @ months Mfonthly INR LO11.81 | 1 vear MCLR* + 1.35%
(Up 1o December 2020)
* Marginal Cost Lending Rate
e {This gpace i left blauk intentionally)
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Grasim Premium Fabric Private Limited
{(Formerly known as Soktas India Private Limited)
Motes 1o financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

All amounts are Rupees

Details of outstuonding borrowings as at 31 March 2018:

in lmes unless staled otherwise

Name of Bank / party |  Period of Maturity from Terms of Currency Dutstanding Amount of| Rates during the period
31 March 2018 repayment Lonmz az on 31 Murch
2018 (respective
currency)
State Bank of India L0 Y, (Up to March 2019) Clanrterly IR 39964 MCLR*+ 330%
Bank of Baroda 7 monahs (Up e October 2008)0  Quanerly MR 213.65 MCLR * +2.65%
SB-Corporate Loan 2 ¥rs.5 months (Up to Aug Monthly LST 617 Spread &4.00%
20200 + 6 M LIBOR
SBI-FTL 2 Y5, 10 months (Up to Monthly INR 161.25 | | year MCLR * 43.30%
Tnngary 2021)
BOB-Corporate Loon 3 ¥m.1 monih (Up to April Monthly In INR tilt 31 Augus 500 Spread @3.50%
2021y 2017 then onwards +6 M LIBOR
comverled 1o LISD
[CTCT Bank 2 ¥r1s.2 months {Up Lo honthly In USDRUEA] Jamuary L3ED.UE | | year MCLE®* + 1.B5%
Drecember 2020) 2018 then onwards
converted 1o INR
* Murginal Cost Lending Rate
Detaily of outstanding borrowings as ot 1 April 2017:
Name of Bank / party | Period of Maturity from Terms of Currency Qutstanding Amount of | Rates during the period
1 April 2007 repiyment Loans as on 1 April
217 (respective
54
State Bank of India 2.0%rs, (Upto Crunrterly INR 79,68 MCLR* + 3.30%
March 2019}
Bauk of Baroda 1 ¥t 7 months (Up o October | Quarerly INE 40825 Hase cale + 3.00%,
2018) (bt not less than any
SBI-Corporate Loan 3 Yee, 5 months {Up to Al Manthly UsD 701 | 1 year MCLE * +3,20%
2020)
SBI-FI'L 3 ¥ s 10 months (Up 1o Monthiy MR 196,88 | | year MCLR * +3.20%
Januury 2021)
BOB-Corporate Loan 4 ¥rs. 1 month (Up to Apail Manthly INR 436,00 |  Base rats + 2,90%,
2021} {hut not kess than any
BOB-FTL 4 %rs. (Up to March 2021** | Monthly INR 2150 | Base rale + 2.90%,
(bost ot less than any
1CTCT Bank 3 ¥ra.9 months (Up o Momthly | In USD il 31 January 3185 | | year MCLE* + 1.85%
Degember 2020 2018 then onwands
converted ro DR
* Marginal Cost Lending Rate
“= O the above loan Rs. 175.00 Lacs is not yet disbursed and the closing ewstanding was repayable by Tanuary 2018,
18. (iher non-current financinl Hobilities
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
Deposits and refention smount payable 115.44 122.86 11519
Other payables - = 133,42
11544 122.86 24R.61
19, Non-current provisions
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
Provision for employee henefita
Provision for gratuity (refer noge 413 428.26 353.91 319,61
Toial 428.26 3531.91 3961
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Grasim Premivm Fabric Private Limiled

(Formerly known as Sokias India Private Limited)

Maotes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
All amounts are Rupees in Incs unless stated otherwise

20 Current Borrowlngs

31 March 201% 31 March 2018 1 April 2007

Cash credin from banks (refer note i} 1,579.65 1,200.32 132.33
Post- shipment eredit from bank {refer node i) 37.15 - 1342
Bill discounting with finencial instination (refer note Hi) (refer note 389) 70134 489,16 25741

2,318.04 1,690.48 41286
The above amount Inchudes
Secured bomowings 231804 1.600.48 A12.86
Unsecured borrowings - = -

231804 1,690.48 411,86

i} Cash credit from banks are secured against hypothecation of cutrent assets of the Company, These loans are repayable on demond and carry interest

base rate + 2. 75%.

i) Post-shipment credit carries interest chargeable st base cate + rate determined s per RBI directives and are secared sgainst hypothecation of currept

ssels of the Company.

iil) Bill discounting with financial institution is secured ngainst trade receivables agninst which (he bills are discounted and carries an interest rale in the

range of 104 1o 1% p.a.

21 Trade payables
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2007
Trade payahles *
Totnl outstanding does of micro enterprises and small enterprises 55,65 - .
Total cutstanding dues of creditors other than micre enterprises and small enterpelses 343131 3,644, 20 431693
3,486.96 364420 4,316.93
* Including accepiances amounting 1o Re. 1,961,534 Locs (31 March 2018: Rs. 2,368.46 Lacs; | April 2007 R, 2,650.61 Lacs)
22, (Mher Mnancial linbilities
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
Current maturities of non-current borrowings (secured) (refer note 17) 523.45 1.477.11 1.481.62
Interest aceried on borrowings 127 247 -
Derivative contract payable - + 11380
£24,72 1,479.58 1,595.52
23, Diher curcent lnbilitics
31 March 2009 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
Contract Liabilities 54,79 5222 775
Stawnory dues payable 4286 44,55 34,67
Retention amount payvible - - 11817
10265 96.77 161.59
# Staturory dues payable includes due towards tax dedocted ot source, provident fund, professicn tax, other 1axes, s,
2. Current provisions
31 March 2009 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
Provision lor employee benelits
Provizion for gratuity (refer note 41) - - 186
Provision for leave beaefits 38010 336,32 200,86
Tutal B0 33632 01,72
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Grasim Premium Fabrie Private Limited

{Formerly known as Soktas India Private Limited)

Nates to financial statements Tor the year ended 31 March 2019
All amounts are Rupecs in lacs unless stated otherwise

25, Revenue [rom contracts with customers

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Sale of products {incheding excise duty as applicable} 15,968.80 17,760,602
Sade of serviees 149 14,60
15,069,290 17,775.52

Cbrer operating revenues
Serap sabis [&6.46 195,18
Government grani - export incentives 3589 32.85
Others® 291,35 58732
513.71 T45.35
Total revenwe from contracts with customers lﬂi_.d&nﬂ 1852087

* Others prmarily includes sale of yam, chemicals pnd other muerial

Revenue from contracts with customers for peelod up 1o 30 June 2017 includes exeise duty. From | July 2017 onwards the excise duty and most
indirect taxes in India have been replaced with Goods and Service Tax (GST). The Company collects GST on behalf of the govemnment and
hence, GST &5 not included in revenue from contracts with customers. In view of the aforesaid change in indirect fazes, revene from contracts

with customers for the year ended 31 March 2019 is not comparsble with 31 March 2018,

Disaggregated revenue information

Set out below is the disapgregation of the Company's revenue from contracts with customers

3 March 2019 3 March 2018
Location
Inedin 15,024.0 16,437,355
Dutside lndia 1.458.09 2,083.32
Total revenue from contracts with customers 16483.00 18,520.87
Timing of revenue recognifion
Gonds transferred at a point in time 16.482.51 18,506.27
Services translerred over time (149 14.60
Revenue from condract with customers 164R3.00 18,520,687
Set out below is the amount of revenue recognised from
Amounts included in contract lHabillties at the beginning of the year nn 1.75
Pesformance obligations satisfied in previous years = =
Reconciling the amount of revenve recognised in the Statement of profit und loss
wilh the contracted price
Revenue as per copleacted price
Adjustments 18,784.58 18,704.83
Discoutts (301.58) (183.96)
Revenpe from contract with eustomery 16,483.00 18,520.87
26, Other income

21 Muarch 2019 31 Murch 201%
Interest income on
Bank deposits 2.22 9.04
Oithers 1217 16.35
Governiment grant * 16.49 195,18
Exchange differences (net} - 38.50
Praofit on sale of fixed assets 19.07 002
Miscellanecus Inconss 18,36 3202

45,31 202.51

*Details of povernment grant

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Capital subsldy undar TUFS 6.4 8.0
Package scheme of incentives - 157,17

a8 19518
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Grasim Premium Fabric Private Limited

(Farmerly known as Soktas India Private Limited)

Motes to financial statements or the year ended 31 March 2019
All pmounts pre Rupees in lacs unless sioted otherwise

27. Cost of raw material consumed

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Inventory at the beginning of the year 404 68 554.76
Add: Purchases 7.054.80 7.804.13
7.549.48 B ASE D
Less: Inventory at the end of the vear 687,78 A 6E
Cust of raw material consumed 6,561.70 786421
28, Purchase of traded goods
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Y arn - 386,24
= 38624
29. Chanpes in inventories of finished goods and work In progress
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Inventories at the end of the yvear (refer note &)
Work-in-progress 1.080.14 1,253.28
Finished goods B28.25 oL .61
Subtotal (A) 2.008.39 2,154.89
Invertories at the beginning of the year (refer note )
Work-in-progress 1,153.28 1,105.76
Finished goods W61 700,28
Subtotad (B) 2.154.89 1,815.04
Chonges in inventaries of finished goods and work in progreas (B-A) 146.50 (339.85)
30, Employes benefit expense
31 Murch 2019 31 Morch 2018
Salaries, wages and bonus 21288 71010
Contribution to provident fund 177.42 191.26
Giralulty expenses {refer nole 41) 82.20 45,56
Recruitment and training expenses 1.81 581
Stall welfare expenses 110016 93,30
3,284.47 3,096.03
31, Depreciation and amortization expense
31 March 2019 Al Maorch 2018
Depeeciation of propary, plant and squipments 1,730.71 1, 728,18
Amortization of intangible assets 12321 7748
1,053.92 1,805.66
32, Finance costs
31 Muarch 2019 31 March 2018
Interest on borrowings and other 672.91 503.57
Other hormowing costs 4805 49,65
Exehange differences (o the extent considered s an edjustmant 1o bomrowing cost 2135 B34
T44.24 561.56
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Grasim Premium Fabric Private Limited

(Formerly known as Soktas India Private Limited)

Motes to financial statéments for the year ended 31 March 2019
All amounts are Bopoes in lacs unless stated stherwise

33, Diher expenses

A1 March 2019 31 March 2018

Consumption of stores, spares and packing material 39498 436.04
Power and fuel 1.270.04 1.274.56
Freight and forwarding charges 4523 T2.41
Rent (refer note 42) 30,26 20,92
Ohutsoureing expenses 853.97 1,206.87
Rtes and faxes §22 .17
Inzurance 3833 5348
Hepairs and maintenance

Plant and Machinery 146.41 139,42

Buildings 294 2.90

Others 27.40 3344
Advertizing and sales promotion expenses [26.91 1 B0
Commission expenses 445,07 54264
Travelling and conveyance 8741 Y297
Lagal and professional fees 150.5% 143,34
Exchange differences {net) 14.98 -
C5R expenses (refer note 48) 10,22 1.63
Provision for doubiful debts 859 -
Auditors renunecation

Sratutory audit 15.50 12,00

Tax pudit 378 300

Others (inehuding certification) 25.65 1844

Out of pocket expenses 4,55 360
Miscellaneous expenses 306.53 350,25

4,017 .56 4,717
34, Earnings per share (EPS)
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Met {lose) / profit stributable o equity shareholders (433,55 506,08
Weighted average number of equity shases for cnfeulating basie EPS (Mo, in Lacs) 1,130,940 1, 130,90
Earnings per sharve (in absolute rupecs per share) {38} 045
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Grasim Premium Fabric Private Limited

{Formerly known ns Soklas India Private Limited)

Notes to linancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2012
All amounts are Rupees in lpcs unless stated otherwise

35, Segment Information

The Company is engaged in manufacturing and sale of grey and dyed shining fabrics. On review of all the relevant aspects including, in particular,
the system of intemal financial reporting to the Board of Directors which s the Chilef Operating Decision Maker {CODM) and considering the
economic characteristics of the operations, the Company is of the view that it operates in a single primary segment. The suid treatment is in the
nccordance with the guiding principles enacted in Indian Azcounting Standard 108 Operating Segment (Ind A% 108),

3 Morch 2019 31 March 2018

Segment Revenue

Within India 15,024,010 16,437.55
Ohstghde Tndia 1,458.99 2,083.32
Tatal 1 _ﬁg}_ﬂ_ 18,520.87
Addition to Non-Current Assets

Within Indin 330,63 1,210.28
Orntzicle Tndia z %
Total 338,63 l,m::a

The following {s the carrying amount of segment sssets by geographical area in which the assets are lovated.
Carrying amouni of segment assels

31 March 2019 M March 2018 1 April 2017
‘Within Indis 15,205.75 1, 345,06 16,8349.95
Dutside India 54.52 533.65 55230
1526027 1688271 17392.25

Amount of sales to customers to more than 10% of tetal sales:

21 March 201% 31 March 2018

Amecant of sales to customers (o more than 10% of waal sales 2.572.69 246541
36, Contingent Liabilities

31 March 201% 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
Income tax mmiers - 117.67 I8
Snles tnx matiers 10,35 136 -
Letters of guarantee given 1o customs and other authoriies 115.10 38138 A&H,03
Export Promotion Capital Goods {(EPCG) - Lisbility if expon obligations are 47.79 07.95 32930
riat fulfilled in fture years (excluding intarast and penakhy) (note 1)

17324 59924 19917,

Mote (1} : Differential anount of custems duty payoble by the Company in case of non-fulfillmen) of expon obligation aguinst the import of capital
foods made at concessional rate of duty, Based on the future sales plan, the management §s quite hopeful to meet out the balance obligations by
executing the requbred volume of exports in the future,

{ii) The Suprema Court had pasted judgement on 28 February 2019 that all allowances paid 1o employees are to be considered for the purpeses of
provident fund wage determination, There are numenoss interpretative issues relating 1o the above judgement, hence the company has not made any
provision in the books of accounts, The company will update its position, on receiving further clarity on the subject.
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Grasim Preminm Fabric Private Limited

{Formesly known as Soktas India Private Limited)

Motes to financinl statenvents Tor the year ended 31 March 2019
All amounts are Rupees in Incs unless stoted otherwise

37, Capital and other commitments

Estimated amoant of contracts remaining to be executed on capital aceount and not provided for is Bs, 5163 Lacs (31 March 2008 Ks, Mil ; 1 April
2017 Mily, net of advances of Rs. 6.78 Lacs (31 March 2018 Ra. Ml ; 1 April 2007 R 126.03 Locs), For other commitments refer note 42 selating 1o
lease arrangements,

38. Bignilicant accounting judgements; estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company's financial suatements requires manogement to make judgements, estimates and assumptions (it affect the reported
amounts of revenues, expense, asaels and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, end the disclosure of contingent liabilities, Uncemainty about
these assumptions and estimates could reault in orcome that regquire o material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in
futare periods.

In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management hos made the following judpements, which have the mest significant effect
on the amounts recognized in the financial statements;

Revenoe frem contracts with customers
The Company applied the following judgements ths significamly affect the determination of the amount and timing of revenue from comlracts with
customers:

= Determining method to estimate varfable consideration and assessing the constraint

Certain contracts for the sale of goods include volume rebates and discounts thae give rise o varable consideration, In estimating (he variahle
consideration, the Company apglies ither the most likely amount method or the expected value method The most Iikely amoant method is applied for
contracts with a single-vobame threahold and the expected value method is applied for contracts with more than one volume threshold,

The Company determined that the estimates of varlable consideration are nol constrained based on its historical experience, huginess forecast and the
current economic conditions. In addition, the uncerainty on the varisble consideration will be resclved within a short dme frame,

Estimates and assumptiong

The key assumplicns conterming (e future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reperting date that have a significant risk of consing a
muteriad adjostment to the camylng amount of assels and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below, The Company based its
assurnplions and estimation on parameters avadlable when the finoncial statements were prepared. Exiating circumstances and assumptions shout fulure
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstonees arsing beyond the conteed of the Company, Such changes are reflected in
the assumpdicns when they occur,

Defined benelit plans:

The cost of the defined benefit grapuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actwarial valuations, An actoarial
valuntion involves making various assumplions that may differ from sctial developments in the futume, Thene inclsde the detenmination of the discount
rate, future salary increases and momality rates, Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long (emm nature, a defined benefit obligation
is highly sensitive 1o changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporing date.

The discount rate is the parameler most subject to change, In determining the appropriale discount rate for plans operated in India, the management
considers the intersst rates of government bonds. The momality rate is based on publicly available monality tables for Indis, Monudity whies wad o
change only ot interval in response to demopraphic chonges, Future salory increnses and gratuity increases are based on expecled feture inflation rates.
Further details about gratuity obligations are given in note 41.

Taxes

MAT credit entitlement is recognised to the extent it 38 probable thal taxable profit will be svailable ngainst which the MAT credit can be utilised.
Significant management judgement is required to determing the amount of MAT credit that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the
fevel of future taxnble profits tgether with future tax planning strategies,

In the obsence of convincing evidence that future txable profits would be available se the Company, MAT eredit is not recognised in books,
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Grasim Premium Fabric Private Limited

{Formerly known s Sokias India Private Limited)

Muotes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
Al amounts are Rupees in bes onless stoted stherwise

39. Related party disclosures

Mame of related parties where control exists lrrespective of whether trangactions have oceurred or not:

Hoiding Company Lipto 29 March 2019 © Soktus Teksul Sanayi Ticoret A5, Turksy
Froen 29 March 2019 : Grosim Industries Limited, India

Related parties with whom trangnctions have taken ploce during the current and provioos vear

Deseription of relationship Mome of the parties

Fellow subsidiary Upto 20 March 2019 : Soktas Doluma Sanayl Ticaret A.8., Tuskey
Fellow subsidiary From 29 darch 2019 : Aditya Birla Finance Limited, [ndia

Commen dinsctar From 2% March 2008 - Adicya Rirla Fashion and Retail Limited, India
Key monagement personned (KMF) 1} Saduwrand Gupta - Director upto 29 March 2019

1) Chimtamani Malkar - Company Secretary woef. 10 November 2017
3) Mitn Bharamkar - Company Secretary upto 24 August 2007

4) Sushil Agarwal - Director w.elf, 29 March 2019

3) Thomas Varghese - Director woed, I8 March 2019

61 Sangeetn Pendurkar = Dinector woe.f, 29 March 2008

Transaclions during the year
Parficulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Sale of manufactured goods

Aditya Birla Fashion and Retal] Limited, India {related party w.ef. 29 March 2019} 40,58 -

Soktis Dokuma Senayi Ticarel A8, Turkey 47.68 57680

Soktns Tekstil Sanayi Ticaret A8, Turkey 4,61 -
Sale of yarn, dyes and chemicals

Soktns Dokuma Sanayi Ticaret A8, Turkey 239,76 A4 B0
Sale of traded goods

Soktas Dokuma Sanayi Ticaret A8, Turkey - 403.26
Purchase of property, plunt and cquipment

Sclktas Dokuma Sanavl Tleared A8, Turkey 135.89 13837

Soktas Tekstil Sanay Ticaret A 8., Turkey KL B 19.48
Purchase of intangible nssels

Soktas Tekstil Sannyi Ticaret A5, Turkey 6850 1,080.58
Purchases of yarn, dyes and chemicals

Soktas Dokuma Sanayi Ticaret A5, Turkey 154.53 2549

Soktas Teksil Sanayi Ticaret A.S,, Turkey 356,70 -
Purchases of stores and spares

Sokias Dokuma Sanayl Ticaret A8, Turkey - 041
Helmbursement of expenses

Sokias Dokumn Sanayl Ticaret A5, Turkey .20 3616

Soktas Tekatil Sonayi Ticaret A5, Turkey G078 19.54
Reimbursement received

Soktas Tekstil Sanayi Ticaret A 5., Turkey - 18.27
Interest paid

Aditya Birla Finance Limited, Indis {related party wef. 29 March 2019) .04 -
Remuneration

Sadanand Gupta 59,52 Th.00

Mita Bharamkar - 162

Chintamani Malkar 5.50 .08
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Grasim Premium Fabric Private Limited

(Formerly known as Sokias India Privote Limited)

Motes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
All amunts are Buopees in lacs unless stated otherwise

39. Reluted party disclosares (Continued)
Balonces outstanding ax ai close of the year

Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
Corporate guarantes for loan taken (to the extent of cloging lHability)

Sokias Tekstil Sanayi Ticaret A8, Turkey - 3. 13661 4,536.72
Financial Habilities : Short term borrowings

Aditya Birla Finance Limited, India 70024 = =
Capital advances

Sckias Dokuma Sanay Ticaret A5, Turkey - - 12519
Advance recoverahle in cagh and kind

Soktas Dokuma Sanayi Theares AS., Turkay - 130,08 380
Soktas Tekstll Sanayi Ticaret A8, Turkey - 111.14 19.63
Sadanand Cupla - 1.89 -
Trde payables

Soktos Dokuma Sanayi Ticaret A8, Turkey - 26.72 18.29
Soktns Tekstil Sanayi Ticarer A8, Turkey - 1.19 4.99
Trade receivables

Aditya Birla Fashion and Retadl Lirnited, udia B27.80 - -
Sokias Dokuma Sanayi Ticarel A8, Turkey N 254,08 431.78

Mates :
1) The amount of corporate guarantee has been restricted (o e closing amount of loans as at the balance sheet date. The original guamntes ameunts is o
the inception of loan is as follows ;

Lender Currency 31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2007
State Bank of India INR - 32000060 3,200,060
Bank of Indin INR - 3500000 3.500.,00
Bank of Baroda INR - 2,277.00 227700
Stare Bank of India UsD - .74 074
Stute Bank of Indin INR - 225.00 225.00
Bank of Boroda-Corporate Loan LI5S0 ¢ IME e 48000 480.00
HBank of Baroda-Freah Ternmn Loan INE - 12500 235.00
1CICT Bank INR - 2312.70 231270

Z) The sales 1o and purchase from related parties are mode on terms equivalent to these that prevail in arm's length trnsaction, Outsianding balances o
e year end are unsedured ond interest free and settlement oceurs in cash, There lave been no puarantees provided or received for any related pary
tecelvables or payables. For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company has net recorded any impairment of necetvables relating to amounts owed by
related parties (31 March 2018: Rs. MNil; 1 April 2017: Rs, Nil), This astessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial
position of the related party and the market in which the related pany operates.

1) Ag the foture lishility for gratuity and leave encashment is provided on an actuarial basis for the Company &5 a8 whele, the amount pertaining 1o key
munagerial perion s not ascentainable and therelong, not included,

4) The informition given above has been reckoned on the biasis of information svailable with the Company and relied wpon by the auditors,

5) There are few free of eost sales made o Groap Companies (Soktas Group),

) Payment term with related party sales rangs from 120 - 270 days.

40, Details relating Lo Micre and Small Enterprises:

31 Murch 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
Total sutstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 55.65 - -
Detuils of ducs to micre and small enterprises ag defined under the MEMED Act,
1} Principal Amount 55,65 - "
2} Interost due 0,48 2 iy
) Payment made 1o supplizrs (other than interest) boyond the appointed day, 154,74 = ¢
during the year
4y Interest pard o suppliers under MSMED &ct, 2006 (other than secticn 16) - = 2
5) Interest paid to suppliers under MSMED Act, 2006 (Section 16) = . -
6} Interest due and payahbe to suppliers under MEMED Act, 2006 for the payments 828 =
already made
) Interest accrued and remaining unpeid & the end of the yeas 1o suppliers under 8.28 5 -

MSEMEL Act, 2006

The Company has compiled this information based on intimations received from (he suppliers of their status as Micro or Small Enterprises and / of its
registrition with the appropriate authority under the Miera, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, As at 31 March 2018 and 1 April
2017, o supplier had intimated the Company aboat its statis as Micro or Small enterprises of its registration with the appropriste authority under Micm,
Small and Medium Enterprires Developmant Act, 2006,
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Grasim Premium Fabrie Private Limited

{Farmerly known as Soktos India Private Limited)

Motes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
All amounts are Ropees in lecs unless stated olherwise

41. Gratuity

A Ciratuity scheme fs o dedined benefic plan that provides for a lump sum paymenst made on exit either by way of retirement, death, disability or
voluntary withdrawal, Linder the gratuity pltan every employee who has completed five years or more of service peis a gratuity on departure at 15 days
of last drawn salary for coch completed year of service. Due 1o (he nature of the plan, the risk commonly affecting the Habilities and the financial result
are expected 1o be:

Interest rate risk: The defined benefit obiigation caloulated vses o discount rate based on government bonds, If bond rate falls, defined benefit
obligation will tends 1o increase.

Salary inflation risk: Higher than expected Increase in salary will increase the defined benefit plan,

Demographic risks This is the risk of vardability of results due to onsysternatic nature of deerements that include monality, withdrawa), dissbility and
retirement. The effect of these decrement on the defined benefit obligation is not straight forward depends upon the combination of salary increase,
dizeount rate and vesting criteria. It Is important wot 1o overstate witlidraowals becadse in the financinl analysis the retirement benefit of o short coreer
eamployes typically cost lesser per year as compared 1o long service employee.

The following tables summarise the component of net benefie expense recognised in the Statement of profit and loss and amounts recognised in
balance sheet:

@, Nel Balance Sheet position

Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Defined benefit obligation (DBO) 428,26 3530
Fair value of Plan assets . -
Met Defined benefit liability 428.26 35301
b. A reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the present value of the Defined Bencfit Obligation (DRO):

Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Opening DAO 35391 330,47
Current service cost 55.09 62,90
Interest cost 2717 24.66
Actuarial lostes [ (gaing) - experience .kl (4757}
Actuarinl {gains) f losses - demographic changes {3.29) .82
Actuarinl losses f (gains) - financisl prumptions 9.44 (22.14)
Benefits paid (2010 (3.23)
Pt service cost = 8.00
Closing DB0 428,26 35391
e Reconclliation of Net balonce sheet position

Particulnrs 31 March 201% 3 March 2019

Met DHO {liabitity) 353.91 33047
Serviee cosl 55,03 7090
Met interest cost 2717 24,686
Amount recegnized in OCE inctuding adjustments for lmit of net assets 12.25 {6E.89)
Employver Contribation - -
Benefit paid directly by the Company (200100 (3,23}
Met defined benefit Qiability) 42826 35391
d. The totsl defined benefit cost:

Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Current Service Cost 5503 62090
Interest Cost n.n 24.66
Actonrial bosses / {gains) recognized in OCL 12.25 [G8_5%)
Past service cost - 5.00
Total 0445 26.67
e. Sintement of profit and loss

Particulars 3 March 201% 31 March 2008
Current sgrvice cost 55.03 62.90
Net interest cost 2717 .66
Past seevice costs planned amendments “ B.00
Cost recognized in Statement of profit and loss §2.20 5,56
f. Mher Comprehensive Income

FParticulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Actuarial boss { (gadn) due 1o DBO experience 12.25 {6880}
Actuarial toss f {gain) recognized in OCT 12.25 (68,50}

i {This space iy lefe blunk intentopally)
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Grasim Premium Fabric Private Limited

(Formerly known as Sokias India Private Limited)

Maotes o Moancial statements Tor the year ended 31 March 2019
All amounts are Rupees in lncs untess stated otherwise

41. Gratuity {Continued)

g Following are the Principal Actuarial Assumption nsed as st the balance sheet dote:

Particulars 3 March 2019 31 March 2018
Discount raie T.80% T.R0%

Expected rate of reium on pla assets
Salary escalation rule

Far first year H0L00% 10.00%:
For next 4 years 0.00% o0.00%:
Therealter B.00% B.00%
Withdrawal rate

Age upto 3 yoars 3,004 3.00%
Age 31 - 40 years 3,008 3.00%
Age dl - 50 years 3.004% 1,0%
Age above 50 years 3.00% 1.00%

The extimates of future salary increases considered in aorarial vabaotion takes into pecoant inflation, seniorty, promotion uud oftber relevant (nctors.

h. Expected benefit payment for the next vears

Particulars A1 March 2018 31 March 2018
3=blar-19 - 11,98
3-Mar-20 16,84 13.02
31-Mar-21 1527 15.66
31-Mar-22 1823 1850
31-Mur-23 2801 796
31-Mar-24 36.04 -
20825 - 2009 / 20124 - 2028 152.55 24531
i. & quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as shown below:

Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 20118
Diiscount Rate

1% decrease 49783 412,99
1% Increase 3rao2 6.3l
Future salary increase

1% decrease 37575 IS0
% increase 491.14 40777
Withdrowal Rate

1% decreass 42997 35470
1% increase 426.77 35321

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on a method that extrapolstes the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of
reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring al the end of the reporting period.

4 {.1 f:{) , (Thix space is left blank intentionally)
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Gragim Premium Fabeic Privale Limited

(Formerly known s Soktas India Private Limited)

MNotes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
All smounts are Rupecs in kacs unless stated otherwise

42. Leases
Operating lease : Company as lessee
Lease commitments as a Lessee

The Company has entered into non-cancellable operating lease for its Bangalore office. This renewad lease armnpement is for & period of 60 montha

with lock in period of 48 months, This kease also include sscalation clauses,

The minimum lesse payments recognized in the Statement of profit and loss {included under Rent' in note 33) for the year ameownt to Bs, 30,26 Lacs

(31 Muarch 2018: Rs,29.92 Lacs).
Future minimum rentals payabls under non-cancellable operating leases are ns follows:

Particulars 3 March 2019 3 March 2018 1 April 20017
Within one year 230 26.96 24,52
After one year bt not more than five years 48,86 TIaT 84,52
More than five vears - - -
Tatal TT.16 104.13 114.04

43, Fuir values

The following table provides o comparison by elasd of the carrying amounts and fair vales of the Company's financial instruments other than those

with carrying nmounts that are reasonabie ngproximations of fair vabses.

Carrying value Fair value

3 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017 |31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
Financial nsscis
Other non current 411.60 612.54 65557 41160 G6121,54 659,57
Trade recaivables 247362 1,851.53 2 358,80 2473.62 1,831.53 2358.80
Cash and bank 4,03 4.33 .36 4.03 433 .36
Cither bank halances 43.06 62,39 4.52 43.9% 52,39 4.52
Other current financial 163.13 046 3258 103,13 3046 3258
asspls
Totul 3,0346.34 2,811.25 3,061.83 3,036.34 181225 3,061.83
Financial lishilitics
MNon current Borrowings 57500 1,659.50 305510 575.02 1,659.50 3,055.10
Dthar Non Curremt 115.44 12286 248,61 11544 122.86 248.61
Current Borrowings 231844 155048 412,86 2.318.04 1. GRLAR A12.86
Trade pavables JABG.DG 3.644.29 4,316.93 3486.96 3,644.20 431693
Other corrent financial B24.72 1,479.58 1,595.52 B24.72 147054 159552
liabilities
Total 7.320.18 #,596.71 3,620.02 7.320.18 B.596.71 9.620.02

The management assecsed that cash and cash equivalents, trade reeeivables, other financials azsets, borrowings, trade payables amd olher current

lisbilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the shost term maturities of these instrements,

The fuir value of the financial assets and finuncial labiltdes is included at the amount at which the insirament could be exchanged in a current

transaction betwisen willing parties.

— (Thix space ix lefr blank intentionally)
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Grasim Premium Fabric Private Limited

(Formerly known as Sokias India Private Limited)

Mates to financial statements for the year ended 31 Muarch 20019
All amonnts are Rupees in lacs unless stated stherwise

44, Financial risk management

Financial risk Factors:

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise of borrowings and irade and other payables, The main purpese of these financial liabilities
is to finance the Company's operations. The Company's principal Gnuncial assets inchede trade and other recedvables, other bank balances and
cash and cash equivalents that derive dinectly from ity operations.

The risk managemnent policies of the Compony are established to identily and anolyze the risks faced by the Compony, 1o sel appropriae dsk
limits and controls and to monitor and adherebce (o limits, Risk mansgement policles and systems are reviewed regularly 1o reflect changes in
market conditions and the Company's activities.

The Commpany is exposed to market sk, credit csk and liquidity dsk. The Company'’s senior management oversees the mansgement of thess misks,
The Board of Directors reviews and agroes policies for managing each of these rsks, which are summarized s below:

n) Market risk
blarket cigk in the risk that the fair value of future cash Aows of a Mnancial nstroment will Muctoate beeanse of changes in market prices. Market
risk comprises two types of risk as follows:

i} Fareign currency rigk
The Company s exposed to foreign exchange risk arging from varioos gurrency exposures, primarily with respect (o the US dollar and Buro,
Foreign exchange risk arises from futune commerciel transactions, recognized assets and ligbilities denominated in o eurrency that is mot the
entity"s functional currency.
To manage the foreign exchange fsk adsing from recognized assets and labilales, the Company wses forward covers (o hedpa the risk of
Ructuation in some cases, & and when required, The following table demonstrates the sensitivity relating to possible change in forsign curencies
with all other variables held constant. The impact on the Company’s profiv{less) before tax i due 1o changes in the fair value of monetary assets

and liahilities,
Currency  Change in FC eate 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Effect on Profit before Effect on Profit before
LSy 1% [2.26) (5.52)
BEuro 1% - 0,88
Total (226 (504

) Interost rade risk
Interest rge risk s the fair value of future cash Bows of a Mnancial instrument will fuctunte beesuse of changes in the mirked interes rales. The
Company's exposure 16 the rsk of changes in market intarest rates relates primarily 1o the Company's long-term debe oblipations with floating
interes? rates,

The exposure of the Company's finpncial liabilities (o interest rate sk is a3 follows:

Loan taken in Floating rate financial liabilities

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
s 27220 T72.04
INR 2.742.98 3,365.89
Tatal 3.015.27 4,337.93

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity relating (o possible change in interest rates with ol other variabies held constant, The impoct on
the Company's profiv{loss) befons tax is due to chanpes it the fuir value of monstary assets and liahilities.

Particulars  Increase / Decrease 3 March 201% 31 March 2018
in Basiz Points  Effect on Profit before Effect on Profit before
USD Loan +100 (667} (6.95)
USDy Loan -1on 6.67 6.95
Hupes Loan 4100 (33.92) (38860
Rupes Loan =100 3352 38,36
b} Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligstion under financial instrument or customer contract, leading 1o a Mnancial loss. The
Company is exposed to credit risk primarily from trade receivables, other receivables, loans and deposits with banks.

Trade reccivable

Senior management is responsible for managing and analyzing the credit risk for cach of its new clients before standard payment, delivery ferms
and conditions are offered. The Company assess the credit quality of the customer, waking into account its financial position, past sxperience wod
ather factors. Individual risk limits are set hased on nfernal or external assessment, The utilization of credit limbs 3 regulardy moniored. On
azcount of adoption of Ind AS 109, the Company uses expected credit loss medel 1o assess the impairment loss or gain, The Cormpany follows
simplified approach for recognition of impairment less allowance on trade receivables.

Financial mstruments and cash deposits
Cl:uﬂ& l;j;k l.!Eld-:t_!-i-"I anid eash equiivalents is Hmited o5 the Company generally invests in deposits with banks with high credit ratings,
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Grasim Premium Fabric Private Limited

{Formerly known as Soktas India Private Limited)

Motes to financial statements for the yeoar ended 31 March 2019
Al amounts ore Rupees in Incs unbess stated otherwise

¢} Liquidity risk
Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company may encounter difficully in meeting its present and future obligations associated with financial
linhilities thot are required to be settled by delivering cash or another financial asset, The Company’s objective is to, at all times to maintain
optirmum levels of liquidity to meat i cish and other obligations. The Company reguires fund both for sheet term eperational needs and as well as
foe long term fnvestment progeams such 08 investment in fixed assets. The Company clorely monitors its lguldity position and deploys o robust
cash management system. It aims to minimize these rsks by penerating sufficient cosh fows from i current operations, which in addition 1o the -
ovailable cash and cash equivalents, will provide liguidity.

The liguidity risk is managed on the basis of expected mowrity dates of the financial Habilities, The currest borrowings are payabie on
menthlyfquanery instalments based on contractual terms with banks. The averapge credit period taken to settle trades payable is ahowt 60 - 150
duys. (Soktas - Grasim to update this as per the sctunl credit period), Oilier payables are with short term dusations, The carrying amounts are
nssumed to be regsonobie approximation of fair valee,

Financial Liabilities
The following table summarises the maturity profile of the Company's financinl lishilties hased on contractual undiscounted poyments:
31 March 201% 31 March 2018
Less than 12 months 1-5 years Less than 12 months 1 -5 years
Non-current lnancial liabilites
Borrowlings 823.45 575.02 L4771 1,65%.50
Onleer financial lobdlities - 11544 - 122,86
B23.45 G046 147711 1,782.36
Current financials Habilitics
Currem Bormowings 2.318.04 - 160048 -
Trade Payables 3486.95 - 3,644,209 -
Crher financial linbilities® 1.2} & 247 ’
5,R06.27 - 5337.24 -
Tutal ,628.72 0,46 0,814.35 1,782.36

* Current matunty is exlewded from this groaping and shown under nun-t:LuTnnt-burmwim

A5, Capital management
For the purpose of the Compny’s capital monagement, capital inchades fssued pquity capital and all other equity reserves sttributabile (o the equity
holders of the Company, The primery objective of the Company’s capital management s to maximize the sharcholder valie. The Company
manages its capital strocture and makes adjustments in light of changes in cconomic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants,

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, The gearing ratio {5 ealculated as net debe divided by total capital. Net Debt is calculated as
total borewings less cosh and cash equivalents, Total capital is caleulated s equity as shown in the balanee sheet plus all other equity reserves
mtribautable to eguity holders of the Company.

3 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
Borrowings 171651 4,827.00 4,949.58
Less; Cash and cash equivalents 4.03 4.33 636
MNet Deba 371248 & 82276 494322
Equity 6,075.64 742107 6,864.37
Gearing Ratio (imes) 053 .65 0,72
{This space is Teft blank intentionally)
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Grasim Premium Fabric Private Limited

(Formerly known as Soktas India Private Limited)

Motes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
All amounis are Rupees in lacs unless staled otherwise

46, First Time Adoption of Ind AS (Ind AS 101):

.
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The Company has prepared financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 in accordance with Ind AS for the first time. For the periods upio
and including the year ended 31 March 2018, the Company prepared its financial statements in nccordance with the accounting standards notified
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rubes, 2014 (Previous GAAP).

Accordingly, the Company has prepared its financial statements to comply with Ind AS for the year ending 31 March 2019, togerther with comparative
information as at ond for the year ended 31 March 2008, as described in the summmary of significant accounting policies, In preparing these financial
starernents, the Company™s opening balance sheet wis prepared os st 1 April 2017 f.e. the transition dete to Ind AS for the Company. This note explains
the principal adjustment made by the Company in restating its previous GAAP financial statements, inchading the balance sheet as at 1 April 2017 and
the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2018,

1 Exemptions wvailed in sccordance with Ind AS 101

+ Doemed cost for property, plant and cquipment and intangible assets:
The Company hay elected to cominge with the carmying value of all of its property, plant and equipment and intangible sasets recognizsed as of | April
2007 (the transition dae), memsured as par the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deerned cost as of the ransition dete under Ind AS.

+ Fair valoe of financials assets and Habilities:
As per Ind AS exemption, the Company has ot fair valued the Anancial assets and livhilies retrospectively and has measured the snme prospectively.

+ Estimates
The estimnates st | April 2007 and at 31 March 2018 pre consistent with those made for the same dses in pccordance with Indian GAAP (after
adjustments 1o refllect any differences in accounting policies) apan from the following items where applicotion of [ndian GAAP did not reguire
eatimation,

* Classification and measurement of financial assels

The Company has classified the financial assets in accordance with Ind AS 109 on the basis of Tacts and clreumstances thar exist at the date of
transition to Ind AS.

¢ Explanation of transition to Ind AS
The below mentioned reconcilistions provide o quantification of the effect of significont differences nrising from the transition from Indian GAAP w0
Ind AS kn secordance with Ind AS 101 for the following:

= euity as at | April 2087;

= eguity as at 31 Morch 2018 and

= profit for the vear ended 31 March 2018
There are oo matenal adjestments 1o the cash flow statements.
In the reconcilistions mentioned above, certain reclossifications heve been mode to Indian GAAP finoncial information 1o align with the Ind AS
presentation.

2 Mofes to the reconcilintion of cquity as ot 1 April 2007 and 31 March 2018 and total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2018

a Hher comprehensive Income (OC):
Under Previous GAAP, there was no concept of DCT Under Ind AS, remessucement of defined benefit plan Hability are recognised in OCL

b Excise duty:
Under Previous GAAP, revenve from sale of products was presented net of excise duly under revenue from opentions, Whereas, under Ind AS,
revenue from sale of products is inclusive of exclze duty smowmting to Bs, 4,71 Lacs for the year ended 31 Murch 2018, Accoerdingly, excise duty has
been incleded in the cost of production, as it s a liability of the manufaciurer, freespective of whether the goods are sold or not and has beea shown
seperately as Exeise dury expense’ in the Statement of profit and loss,

¢ Cash discount:
Under previous GAAP, cash discount of Rs. 10042 Lacs was recognised o5 pant of other expenses, which has been adjusted against the revenue from
operaticns under Ind AS during the year ended 31 March 2018,

d Defined benefit obligation:
Both urder Previous GAAP and Ind AS, the Company recopnised costs related (o its post-employment defined bensfit plan on an actarial basis, Under
Previous GAAP, the entre cost, including actuardal puin and losses, are charged 1o profit or loss, Under Ind A8, remeasurements (comprising of
petuarial gains gl losses, the effect of assets ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the mee defined benefit Hability and relum on plan
assers excluding amount iecluded in net bvarest on the net defined benefit Hability) are recognised in the balance sheet through other comprehensive
income (OCE) net of tax. Thus, employee bencefit expense is reduced by Rs, 68,89 Lacs (fax effect of Bs, 19,17 Lacs) and iz recognised in OCI during
the yenr ended 31 March 2018,

¢ TUFS interest subsidy ceceivable:
TUFS Interest Subsidy Hecsivable has been discounted at the rate of interest applicable for the loan.The opening reserves as on | Apeil 2007 are
adiusted for discounting by Bs 136,39 Lacs,

[ Processing fees on term loans
Processing fees of Re.85.15 Laca on term loans hove been adjusted in the opening reserves as on 1 April 2007 and condidersd as prepaid expandimre,
These processing fees are amortized over the term of the boans in the proportion of interest on these tenm loans.
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Grasim Premiom Fabric Private Limited

(Farmerly known as Soktas India Private Limited)

Motes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
All amounits are Rupees in lacs unless stated otherwise

# Re-classification of assets and labilities as per Schedule T of the Companies Act, 2003:
| TUFS interest subsidy receivable which is financial in natere have been reclassified from loans and advances 1o other financiol assets,
1 Security deposits which are financial in naure have been reclassified from loans and advances to other financial assets.
lii Term deposits with banks with maturity gréater than twelve moaths and interest accrued on fixed deposits have been reclassified from other assets 1o
ather financlal assets,
iv Capital advances have been reclsssified from non-currznt loans and advances to other non-curment assets,
v Prepaid expenses and balances with statutory / government sathorities have been reclassified from loans and advances 10 other assets,
vi Current and non-gurrent liabilities have been reclassified into financial and non-financial liabilities aa per the nature of labilities,

3 Dsclesures as required by Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 101 First Time Adogtion of Indian Accounting Standurds

A Effect of Ind AS adoption on the Balonce Sheet us at 31 March 2008 and 1 April 2007:

Particulars MNote 31 March 2018 L April 2017
Previous Effect of As per Ind Previous Effect of As per Indd
GAAP Transition AS Balance GAAP Transition AS Balunce
1o Ind AS Sheet to Ind AS Sheet
Asseis
Mon-current assets
Propeny, plant and equipment 020,94 - 0.230.04 11,031 68 - 11,031.66
Capital work-in-progress - - - - - -
Intangible assets 1,027.57 - 1,027.57 24,47 - 2447
Dieferred tax assets (net) - - . 58,13 - 58,73
Financial nssets
Other financial assets (el T56.80 { L. 26) 61254 T95.96 (136,39 659,57
CHer non-current assets b T0.55 645 107.00 226.05 6037 28642
Income Lk asset (nat) 10193 - 10:1.93 7441 - 74,41
11,187.79 {10781} 11,079.98 12,211.28 {76002} 12,135.26
Current pssels
Inventories 2.806,64 - 2,896.64 2,577.66 - 2,577.66
Finanzinl assels
Trade receivahbes 1,431.53 . 1,631.53 2.358.80 r 2,358.80
Cash and bank equivalents Zighini) 10117 (96.84) 4.33 1272 (6.36) .36
Osher bank balances 2igiit) . 62,39 62.30 - 4,52 4,52
Oaher current linancial assess ZigHii) 267,01 34.45 3146 30.74 1.44 32,58
Oher current nssely 20 AR.46 2152 TO6.38 25029 2478 17707
5,778.81 23,92 5,802.73 5.232.21 24.78 5,256,599
TOTAL 165,563, 600 (5384 16,882.71 1744349 (51.24) 17,392.25
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 11,3080 - 11,309,086 11.309.06 - 11,309.06
Other equity el 2L (3,804,100 (83.89% {3, 857.00) {4,393.45) {51.24) (4,444 60)
7,504, 9% (53.89) 742107 6,215.61 (51.24) 864,37
Mon-cureent Habilities
Deferred government subsidy 7793 - T7.93 11594 - I15.84
Financial labilities
Bommowings 1,6:54.50 - 1,650.50 305510 - 305510
Oither financinl lizhilities 122,86 - 12185 2861 . 248,61
Provisions 35391 - 35391 3961 - 31061
2,214.20 - 2,214.20 3,730.26 - 373826
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings £, 600,48 - 1,690.48 41286 - 412,86
Trade pavables 3.644.20 - 3.644.20 4,316.93 - 431693
Orher current financial labititdes 1,479.58 - 1.474%,58 1,595.52 - 1,595.52
Other current labalities 6,77 - 26,77 161,59 - 161,59
Provisions 336,32 - 336,32 LT - anlT
T.247.44 - 7,247.44 &, TBE.62 - 6,788,621
TOTAL 16,946, 6l (#31.89) 16,882.71 17,443.49 (51.24) 1739225
f i\
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Grasim Premium Fabric Private Limited

(Formerly known as Sokitas India Private Limited)

Motes to financisl steiements for the year ended 31 March 2019
All amounts are Rupees in lacs unless stated otherwise

B Effect of Ind AS adoption on the Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 Morch 2008:

Particulars Note Al March 2018
Previous Effect of As per Indl AS
GAAP Transition Statement of
to Ind AS Profit & Loss
Income
Revenue from operations 20k, 2} 18,616,549 {9572} 18,520,587
Caher income 282,51 - 292.51
Toial Income 18,904.10 (95.72) 18,813,358
Expenses:
Cost of raw material and componemns consumed 7.864.21 - T.864,2]
Purchase of traded goods 386.24 - 386,24
Change in investories of finished goods and work-in-progress (339.85) - (339,853
Excise duty expenses 2(h) - 471 4.71
Employes benefits cxpense Hd) 3.027.14 GE.AY A,096.03
Depreciation and amaortization expense 1,805.66 - 1,805.66
Finance cosis ey, 2N 528.92 32.64 S61.56
Ckher expenses 2e) 4.,821.21 {10043} 4,720.78
Tolal Expenses 18,093.53 581 18,095 34
{Loss) / profit before tax 1557 {101.53) TLA.04
Current Tax expense:
Minkmam alternative o (MAT) payvable 167.50 - 167.50
MWAT credit entitlement (167,50} = (167.50)
Provision for MAT credit 126.23 - 126.23
Deferred Tax 20d) - (19.17) {19.17)
Total iax expense 226,23 (19.17) 706
{Loss) £ profit for the period 58934 (B2,34) 506,98
Other comprehensive income (OCT)
Irems not to be reclossified 1o profit or 023 in subsequent periods ;
Re-measurement gain f {losseg) on defined benefit plans 2id) - 68,80 &R, 89
Income tax effect 2(d) - [19.17} (19,17
Met other comprehensive income not (o be reclirssified to profil or loss in - 49.72 49,72
subsequent period
Total comprehensive income for the year 580.34 (32.64) 556,70
C Reconciliation of Total Comprehensive Income for the year ended 31 March 2018:
31 March 2018
Profit as reported under previous GAAP (A) 58934
Ind AS adjustments on account of:
| Dizcounting of TUFS Inerest Subsidy 2(2) (7.88)
ii Amortiziion of Processing Foes 2 (24.78)
ili Re-measurement gain f (losses) on defined benefit plans 2{d) (68.89)
iv Income tax effect 2id}y 1917
Tatal effect of transition to Ind AS (B) (82.36)
Profit for the year as per Ind AS [A+B) 506,98
Other Comprehensive Ineome for the vear (net of tax) 47
Total Comprehensive Income under Ind AS 556,70
D Becencilintion of Equity as st 31 March 2008 and 1 April 2017;
3 March 2008 1 April 2017
Total Equity as reporied under previons GAAP (A) 7,504,596 6,915.61
Inal AS mdjustments an account ol
Diseounting of TUFS Interest Subsidy 2e) (144.26) (136,39}
Processing Fees considered as Prepaid Expenacs U 037 RA.I5
Total adjustments Lo Equity (B) (83.89) {51.24)
Tutal Equity under Ind AS (A + B) TA421.07
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E Effect of Ind AS adoption on the Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March, 2015

Effect of
iy Tonsiionto I AS
Mei cash flows from Operating Activities 1,580.43 . 1.580.43
Met cash flows from Investing Activities (897.95) - (B97.95)
Met cash flows from Financing Activities (A84,52) - {584,52)
Net inerepse/{Ddecrease) n cazh and cash equivalents (2.04) - (204
Effect of exchange differences on cash & cash equivalents held in foceign cumancy 0.0 - 0.1
Cash and cash squivalents al the beginmng of (he year .36 - 6,36
Cash and cash equivalents st the end of the year 4.33 - 4,33

47. Stnndards issued but not yet effective
The amendments to standards that ere jssoed, but not yet effective, up 1o the date of issuance of the Company's financial statements are disclosed
below. The Company intends to adope these standards, if applicable, when they become effecsive,
The Ministry of Corporate Affazes CMCA') has sseed the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019 emending the following
standards:

A Ind AS 116 - Lease

Ind AS 116 Leases was potified on 30 March 2019 and it replaces Ind AS 17 Léases, including appemdives (hereto, Ind AS 116 15 effective Dor annual
periods beginning on or after 1 April 2019, Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the recopnition, meassrement, presentation and disclosure of leases
and requires fessees to nccount for oll leases under a single on-balance sheet model similar 10 the accounting for finance leases under Ind AS 17, The
standard inchudes two recognition exemptions for lessees = leases of "low-value” assets {e.g., personal compaters) and short-term leases (i.e., lenses
with a laase term of 12 months or less) Al the commencement date of a fease, a lessee will recognize a liability 10 make lease payments {Le,, the lease
linbility) and an asset representing the right o use the undeclying asset during the lease resm (E.e,, the nght-of-nse asset), Lessees will be required o
separately recognize the inferest expense on the lease Hability and the depreciation expense on the dght-of-use asset.

Lesgpas will be also required to remeasure the lease lighility upon the occurmence of certain eventa (e.g., o change in the lease term, a change in fuure
lease puyments resulting (rom o change in on indox or rate used to determine those poymenis), The lessce will gencrally recognize the amount of the
remeasurement of the ease lobility as an adjustment 1o the right-of-use asset.

Lessor accounting under Ind AS 116 is substantinlly unchanged from accounting under [nd AS 17, Lessors will continue to classify all lenses using the
same classification principle as in Ind AS 17 and distinguish between two types of leases: operating and finance beases,

The Company continues o evaluae the svallable transition mithods and bis lease contraciual arangements. The ultimate Impact resuling from the
application of Ind AS 116 will ba subject to assessments that are dependent on terms of lease contractual arangements,

B Appendix C to Ind AS 12 Uncertainty over Income Tox Trestment
The interpreiation addresses the accounting for income laxes when tas trealments involve uncertamty that alfects the application of Il AS 12 and does
not upply 1o taxes or Jevies outkide the seope of Ind AS 12, nor does it specifically include requircments reluting to interest and penaltics associated
with uncertain tax treatments. The interpretation specifically addresses the following:

* Whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately

* The pssumpdicns an entity makes about the expminution of tax treptments by taxation suthorities

= How an entity determines taxable peofit (fax loss), thx bases, unused (ax losses, unused fax erecits and 1ax sates

+ How an entity considers changes in faces and circumstances
A entity has 1o determine whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment sepasately or together with one or more other uncertain tax treslments, The
approach that better predicts the resolution of the uncestainty shoukd be followed, In determining the approach that better predicts the resolution of the
uncertzingy, an entity might consider, for example, () how it prepares 3ts income tax filings and suppors tax treatments; or (b) how the entity expects
the taxation awthority to make its examination and resolve lssues that might asise from that examination.

The interpretation is effective for annual reperting periods beginning on or after 1 April 201%, but certain transition reliefs are available. The Company
will upply the interpretation rom bs effective date, The Company does nod expect to have any mateeial inspact on s financial statements,

C Amendments o Ind AS 1%: Plan Amendment, Cortallment or settlement
The amerdments 10 Ind AS 19 address the accounting when & plan amendmem, curailment or setthersent oceurs during a repoing pericd. The
amendments specify that when a plan amendment, cumailment or settlement occurs during the annupl reporting period, an entity is reguired o:

+ Detepmine curent service cost for the remainder of the perod alter the plan amendment, certailment or seilement, using the sciueanial assumptions
wsed 1o remensure the net defined benefit Rability (asset) reflecting the benefins offered under the plan and the plan assets after that event.

+ Determine net interest for the remainder of the period after the plan amendment, curtailment or setlement using: the net defined benefis lability (assed)
reflecting the benefits offered under the plan and the plan assets after that event; and the discount rate used to remeasure that net defined benefit
liability {asset).

The amendments also clarify that an entity first determines any past service cost, or o gain or boss on seqtlement, without considering the effect of the
usset ceiling. This amount is recognized in profit or loss, An entity then determines the effect of the asset ceiling after the plan amendment, curtailment
or settlement. Any chamge in that effect, excheding amounts included in the et interest, I8 recognized in other comprehensive income.

The amendments apply to plan amendments, curtailments, or settlements occuring on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period that
hegins on or after | April 2009, These amendments will apply only to any future plan smendments, contaitments, or settlements of the Company. The

"
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. Annual improvement to Ind AS (2018)

Amendments 1o Ind AS 23: Borrowing Cosis

‘The amendments clarify that an entity treats as part of general borrowings any berrowing originally made w develop a qualifying asses when substantially all of
the activities necessary 1o prepare that asset [or its itended use or sale are complese.

An entity applies those amendments to berrowing costs incurred on or afier the beginning of the annual teporting period in which the entity first applies those
amendments, An entily applies those amendments for annoal reporting periods begianing on or after | April 2019, Since the Company's current practize i$ in
line with these amendments, the Company does not expect any effect on its financial statements,

48, Corporate sacial responsibility

As g2t ot in Section 135 of the Companics Act, 2013, the Company is required w contribuse Re.11.27 Lacs {31 March 2018 ; Bs.6.61 Lacs) towards corporare
social responsibility setivities, as caloulated basis 2% of ils average nef profits of the last three finencial years, However, during the current year, the Company
has contriad Rs 1022 Lacs (31 March 2018 : Bs.1.63 Lacs) owards corporate social responsibility activities as mentiongd in Schednle VI {inchuding
amendments therein) of the Compenies Act, 20013,

49, Subsequent event

The Board of Directors of Grasim Indusiries Limbed (the Holding Company) at its mesting held on 24 May 2019, hes considered and approved the Scheme of
Amalgumation of the Company, 0 wholly owned subsidiary of the Holding Company under the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Scheme”).
The scheme is srhject to necessary stautory and regelatory approvals,
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